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FY 2013 Annual General Meeting

Message from President Venerable Kwang Sheng
24-08-2013

In the 1960°s Singapore, resources were scarcity and people’s living standards are relatively
low, and whose wealth was lesser than today’s, but it was a society filled with loving kindness and
generosity. Then two eminent Singapore Buddhist leaders Venerable Hong Choon and Venerable
Siong Khye called on all Buddhist congregation and community leaders to donate generously.
They came back with an overwhelming positive response, thus Singapore Buddhist Free Clinic was
established in November 1969.

Singapore Buddhist Free Clinic’s vision and mission is to embody and enshrine Buddhist’s
teachings of compassion and wisdom in the building of a gracious and harmonious society by
involving the public and authorities in unity. Providing free medical care to the community to relieve
sufferings. The clinic’s structure works in such a way that the Board provides guiding principals and
policies for the management to execute all administrative duties and affairs. Recalling the traversed

mileage, this could be classified into three phases:

1. During the initial and start-up period (1969-1972): The first clinic borrowed the 2™ Floor
space from Putuo Temple. First branch clinic which is known as Rehabilitation Center was
established in 1972 at Indus Road.

2. During years 1972 -1995, it was the developing period: Within the 24 years, branches of
Singapore Buddhist Free Clinic at Geylang, Ang Mo Kio, Redhill and Jurong were established

to provide free medical care for public in different regions.

3. From years 1995 to present which is the booming period (1995-present): The reconstruction of
the Headquarters building at Geylang was completed in 2007. The Cancer Treatment Centre
was established in October 2012 to provide the traditional Chinese Medicine treatment to
Cancer Patients. For year 2013 the Ministry of Health has approved one more branch which
will be at Sembawang area, I hope that in the early next year the branch will be ready to

provide medical service to the public.

As we are in the 21st century, and due to the high level of economic progress, philanthropy and
charity operators will need to provide better service to keep up with the pace. However, as the saying

goes: “Sustaining will be tougher than Pioneering”.

2 20134 FHF 20 KamEH
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When the seventh branch clinic is established, the staff will be increased to one hundred
employees and the estimated annual expenditures will be 5-6 million per annum. The Board has the
mission and social responsibility to Singapore Buddhist Free Clinic to be even more significant in the

society.

The proposed new constitution was approved on 17 September 2012 , the board carries out its
duty to restructure the board constitution. Following the guiding principles of our vision and mission
to better manage the organization with the strict control charity governance and compliance.

We have to also comply with the Charities (Institutions of a Public Character Regulations) and

we serve to strengthen public confidence and trust in charities.

I am pleased to announce in today’s Annual General Meeting that the five years proposed

development plan has been gradually implemented and this includes:

 the establishment of Cancer Treatment Center at third floor of the clinic building on 22
October, 2012 to provide treatment to cancer patients;

* the completion of clinical network system in early 2013;

+ conducting medical/health talks which our physicians are the speakers and invited doctors to
provide the medical knowledge and to improve public health awareness.

+ the extension of additional two hours operating hours for Redhill, Ang Mo Kio and Jurong
branches;

* the establishment of the branch clinic in the northern region which is the Sembawang HDB
area, the premises have been acquired with the support of the grassroots leaders, and it has
been approved by HDB and MOH. Work is in progress for all the preparatory work. Will
further explore the possibility for specialized treatments to help prevent and relief terminal

illnesses.
Finally, I hope that the Singapore Buddhist Free Clinic will continue unwaveringly the Buddha’s

Teachings of compassion and wisdom, with the supports from the mass public and the continuous

efforts of the Board to bring warmth and hope to more people!

=
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Singapore Buddhist Free Clinic

Financial Year 2013 Annual Reports
(Period: Apirl 2012-March 2013)
Secretary: Mr Chan Yong Luan

Executive Overview

(1) Annual General Meeting

1.1

1.2

2012 Annual General Meeting being held on 30 June at 3:00 pm at the SBFC Building
fifth floor Conference Hall.

Members present are 34 numbers, commencement of the meeting chaired by the
President Venerable Kwang Sheng of the Board.

The meeting resolved for the acceptance of the Broad, Branches and Medical Affairs
reports.

Treasurer Venerable Ching Chung submitted the Audited Financial Report by Auditor
RSM Chio Lim for the year ended 31/03/2012 for acceptance.

The Annual General Meeting adopted the following resolution:

1.2.1  Appointment of RSM Chio Lim to be the External Auditor for financial year
2013.

1.2.2  Appointment of Venerable Kwang Sheng,Venerable Fa Hui and Venerable
Ching Chung to fill the vacancies of Trustee.

1.2.3  The Extraordinary General Meeting dated 14 April 2012 to modify the draft
constitution; some members had different opinion pertaining to Ministry of
Health’s concern. After discussion, using written poll results to adopt the
proposed constitution:

Clause 5: Membership fees shall be $100 per annum (24 votes), the Board may
waive membership fee (2 votes).

Clause 6: Number of Directors shall be 13 members (22 votes).

The Board consists of at least three and a maximum of 13 members (4 votes).
Article 14: The constitution should require the establishment of subcommittees
of the quorum (19 votes).

Do not require the establishment of subcommittee quorum (5 votes). Invalidated
votes : 6

After the voting outcome, the AGM adopted the proposed Constitution with the

amendments and endorsed by the Board President and submitted to MOH for review

and Registry of Societies for approval.

(2) Extraordinary General Meeting

2.1

Revision of the constitution on September 17, 2012 was approved on 17 September,
2012 by the Registry of Societies.

The Clinic held the EGM on 27 October(Saturday) at 2:15pm at fifth floor conference
hall at SBFC building.

Election of Board of Directors for 26" term, there were 31 members present has reached
the required quorum, President of the Board Venerable Kwang Sheng chaired the
meeting.

There were 16 qualified candidates nomination for the 26" term Board of Directors and
13 of them being elected as 26™ term of Board of Directors.
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Elected members :

KMSPKS Venerable Sik Kwang Sheng,

Shi Fa Hui / Foo Yeun Lim Seck Kai Miew / Sik Nung Toh / Sik Ching Chung /
Meow Im Kok Yuen Temple Sek Bao Ning / Yim Chong Seng / Chan Yong Luan /
Leong Lam Cheong / Choo Kok Cheng / Vimalakirti Buddhist Centre Teo Ching Wi/
Yap Ching Wi/ See Long Hian.

Reserved Seats :

Phoe Thay Lam Yair Seck Ng Sum, Eng Say Hing and Long Hian Loong.

2.2 On 3 November, 2012 (Saturday) at 2:00pm, meeting held at fifth floor conference hall
SBFC building to appoint the position of Board of Directors:
President —- KMSPKS Venerable Sik Kwang Sheng,
Secretary - Mr Chan Yong Luan
Treasurer - Ms Yap Ching Wi
Vice Secretary — Mr Yim Chong Seng
Vice Treasurer — Mr Leong Lam Cheong
Medical Director — Mr See Long Hian
Vice Medical Director — Ven Sek Bao Ning
Directors — Ven Sik Nung Toh/Ven Seck Kai Miew / Ven Sik Ching Chung /
Mr Choo Kok Cheng / Ms Teo Ching Wi.

(3) Summary of Annual Affairs
3.1 Membership
As at March 31, 2013 total number of member is 168.
Organization Member:31(inclusive four permanent members),
Individual Member: Sangha 21,
Lay buddhist116(inclusive two permanent members).
New Member: Liu Yixin, Gan Chern Ning David, Chia Chin Yan and Choo Tiong Hum.

3.2 Nomination and Appointment Committee:
The 25th term Chairman Venerable Kwang Sheng being appointed as Chairperson of
Nomination and Appointment Committee.
Members are:
Sik Ching Chung, Yim Chong Seng, Lim Sek Chong, Chan Yong Luan and Leong Lam
Cheong.
The first meeting was held on 11 August, 2012 at 2:00pm at main office fifth floor
conference hall.

33 The 26" Term Board of Directors was sworn in at 2:00pm on 1 December, 2012 and first
meeting of Board of Directors was held.

34 Meeting Schedule of Board of Directors:
The Board shall convene a meeting every three months, in the event of urgent matters
arises before next Board Meeting, the EXCO Committee may be convened to resolve
them and submit to the Board during the next Board Meeting.
EXCO Committee: President Venerable Kwang Sheng, Secretary Chan Yong Luan,
Treasurer Yap Ching Wi, Medical Director See Long Hian and Director Sik Ching
Chung.

3.5 According to the Constitution the forthcoming establishment of the Subcommittee is
composed as follows:
Internal Audit Committee: Chairman Chia Ti You
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3.6

3.7

Members are Lai Xiuhua, Charles Loke and Chan Yong Luan.

Medical Advisory Committee: Chairman See Long Hian

Members are Yim Chong Seng, Sek Bao Ning and Long Hian Long.

Human Resources Committee: Chairman Lim Sek Chong

Members are Yap Ching Wi, Chan Yong Luan, Wang Ting Ting and Lee Jin Hwui.

To comply with the Charities Governance and Compliance, the following committees
are established to strengthen the supervision of the measures:

3.6.1

3.6.2

3.6.3
3.6.4
3.6.5
3.6.6
3.6.7
3.6.8

3.6.9

Established the Internal Audit Committee, Nomination and Appointment
Committee, Human Resources Committee, Medical Advisory Committee.
Develop Reserves Policy to adopt cash reserve amounting to S$7.6 million.
(with two years annual operating expenses as basis).

The board should regularly review the adequacy of reserves.

Annual report shall be published on the website for public information and
downloading.

Annual report has to declare for those employees earning more than $100,000
per annum.

Develop the comprehensive policies for the succession plan for the Board.

All programmes and projects require review regularly.

Designated spokespersons are: President, Secretary, Chief Executive or the
person designated by the President.

Developed the policies for third parties to use the name and logo of Singapore
Buddhist Free Clinic.

Review the Finance Policies and Procedures according to Charities (Institutions
of A Public Character) Regulations. And identify areas of improvements.

Human Resource Policies and Procedures:

3.7.1

3.7.2

3.7.3

3.7.4

3.7.5

3.7.6

3.7.7

3.7.8

3.7.9

3.7.10

With effect from August 2012, job titles being changed for the employees, and
all of them have to re-signed the employment contracts.

With effect from year 2013, the annual increment take effect from 1 April to be
synchronized with the financial year.

According to NCSS wages guidelines to develop and adjust some employees'
salaries.

The Clinic has officially adopted the retirement age as 65 years old or Mandatory
Retirement Age. The re-employment is contractual on an annual basis.

All employee services more than 20 years and reaches 65 years of age will
receive retirement benefit upon the retirement date and to choose not to have
re-employment contract.

All Administrative staff working hours is five and half days per week; annual
leave start with 14 days, other Operation staff start with 7 days. They are given
1 more day upon completion of a year’s continuous employment. The Annual
Leave is capped at 21 days. The abolition of the original seven days special
holiday take immediate effect.

Adjustment of allowance for replacement Physician and monthly allowance for
Acupuncturist.

Transport allowance will be provided for those night shift or two shifts working
time interval more than three hours.

Develop Performance Appraisal for each employee to determine the annual
increment and annual bonus.

Publication of "Human Resources Policies and Procedures Manual" and
distributed to all employees.
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3.8 Resolution of Banking Account authorized signatories:
26th Term first meeting of Board of Directors to pass and resolve the banking account
authorized signatories are by President Venerable Kwang Sheng, Secretary Mr Chan
Yong Luan, Treasurer Ms Yap Ching Wi and Vice Treasurer Mr Leong Lam Cheong.
Any two of the authorized signatories is hereby authorized to operate all the financial
transactions.

3.9 Restructured and consolidated banking current account:
26th Term first meeting of Board of Directors resolved the following:
3.9.1 Maintain Board existing banking current account:

OCBC Bank — transaction for membership fees, fundraising activities
and administrative expenses.

UOB Bank — transaction for receiving medical fund donation, fund
transfer to DBS current account.

Citibank — solely for transaction of GIRO donation and fund

transfer to DBS current account.
3.9.2 Open DBS Bank current account for payment of all operating expenses.
3.9.3  Close all branches banking current account upon the smoothness of operating
newly open DBS Bank current account.

3.10  The personnel arrangements for all branches Charity Donation Box counting:
The 26th Term first meeting of Board of Directors resolved the personnel arrangements
for all branches Charity Donation Box counting to be responsible by:-
Main office — Venerable Seck Kai Miew
Jurong Branch — Ms Yap Ching Wi
Redhill Branch and Rehab Centre — Mr Leong Lam Cheong
Tg. Pagar Branch — Mr Yim Chong Seng
Ang Mo Kio Branch — Ms Teo Ching Wi.

3.11  Legal Advisor
The 26th Term first meeting of Board of Directors resolved to appoint Mr Marcus Chow
Zhou (ATMD Bird & Bird LLP, Singapore Partner) served as the legal advisor providing
legal advisory services.

3.12  Clinical Network Systems
The 25th Term 13th meeting of Board of Directors to resolve to appoint PCOM Pte
Ltd responsible for clinical network system software and Soft-Pro Computer Pte
Ltd supplied the required computer hardware. The clinical network system had been
completed at the end of March 2013.

(4) Annual Medical Services Summary (April 2012-March 2013)

4.1 Consultation and Acupuncture Statistics
4.1.1  Number of visits
Gender Number of people Number of visits
Male 86,655 289,592
Female 150,941 512,623
Total 237,596 802,215
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4.2

4.1.2  Each branch number of patients and visits:

Branch Number of patients Visits
Geylang 82,757 242,343
Tg. Pagar 21,342 82,134
Redhill 32,685 129,778
Ang Mo Kio 36,757 123,361
Jurong 38,029 147,486
Rehab Centre 26,026 77,113
Total 237,596 802,215
4.1.3  Consultation and Acupuncture
Category Consultation Acupuncture
Number of Patients 146,857 90,739
Ratio 61.81% 38.19%
4.1.4 Paid Fee and Free of Charge (FOC)
Category Charge FOC
Number of Patients 81,702 155,894
Percentage 34.39% 65.61%
4.1.5 Nationality
Category Number of Patients Percentage
Singapore Citizens 219,051 92.20%
Permanent Residents 7,965 3.35%
Work Permit Holders 5,201 2.19%
Holding Travel Documents 5,379 2.26%
Total 237,596 100%
4.1.6  Gender and Age
Age Male Percentage Female Hllgf[liroed
Below 15 years old 3,417 3.94% 2,198 1.46%
15-60 years 29,424 33.96% 54,933 36.39%
Above 60 years old 53,814 62.10% 93,810 62.15%
Total 86,655 100% 150,941 100%
Medical Supplies
Branches Value %
Geylang $ 240,228.19 30.03%
Tg Pagar $ 81,468.16 10.18%
Redhill $ 130,682.19 16.33%
Ang Mo Kio $ 122,847.22 15.36%
Jurong $ 156,848.97 19.60%
Rehab Centre $ 68,028.28 8.50%
Total $ 800,103.01 100%
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4.3

Others

5.1

52

Cancer Treatment Center

Established on 22 October, 2012 and located at the Third floor of main office.

In line with this service, the original acupuncture section moved to the second floor.
Renovation costs is S$80,000.

Consultation Hours: 8:00am to 12:00noon, 1:30pm to 4:30pm.

Main medical supplies using the granules form and supplemented with pills. Per day $5

and $3 for those ages 60 and above.
Those require the financial assistance can apply for waiver.
Resident Physician are Lim Chin Choo and Koh Mok Chen.

4.3.1 From the establishment date to March 31, 2013
Gender Number of Patients Visits
Male 836 7,521
Female 1,151 10,225
Total 1,987 17,746
4.3.2 Nationality
Category Number of people Percentage
Singapore Citizens 1,865 93.86%
Permanent Residents 32 1.61%
Holding Travel Documents 90 4.53%
Total 1,987 100%
4.3.3  Gender and Age Category
Age Male Percentage Female Percentage
15 years old 0 0% 1 0.09%
15 -60 years 306 36.6% 538 46.74%
60 years old 530 63.4% 612 53.17%
Total 836 100% 1151 100%
4.3.4 Number and Amount Of waiver Statistics
Gender The number of applicants Waiver
Male 21
Female 15 $9,392.00
Total 36

4.3.5

Extended Consultation Hours for branches:

Medical supplies value for Cancer Treatment Center is $32,627.73

The 26th Term 1st meeting of Board of Directors to resolve with effective from 1 April,
2013, Tanjong Pagar Branch and Rehabilitation center consultation hours: 8:00am to
12:00noon, 1:30pm to 4:30pm .

Redhill, Ang Mo Kio and Jurong Branch Consultation hours: 8:00am to 12:00noon,
7:00pm to 9:00pm.

Tanjong Pagar Branch trend for patients to visit the clinic had deteriorated in recent
years, mainly due to consultation room are located on the second floor, while the
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majority patients are elderly, their movement up and down stairs is extremely difficult,
with effective from 2012 December consultation room had been moved from second
floor to ground floor, patients to date have been gradually increasing.
53 Open New Branch at Sembawang
HDB and MOH had approved Canberra Link Blk 503A HDB flat void deck premises
area of 334 square meters for the construction of new clinic. Budget for Registered
Architect to carry out the design and construction of proposed clinic is estimated
$600,000/-. Annual operating costs for first year is about $400,000/-.

Financial Summary
(1) Financial year 2013 the profit and loss and the balance sheet statements are:
Total Income $5,058,544.17,
Total Expenses $3,839,292.79,
Surplus is $1,219,251.38
As at March 31, 2012 balance sheet statement:
Total Assets is $ 15,494,407.43
(2 Donation via GIRO is 673 people. Amount of donation is $199,373.00.
(3) Donation via Credit Card donations is $159,953.33.
(4) Donation via SG Gives is $158,409.00.

(5) Government grant for hiring older employees $84,848.00.

Branch 09/2012 03/2013 Total
Geylang $ 17,002.00 | $ 17,752.00 | $ 34,754.00
Tg Pagar $ 6,096.00 | $ 5,836.00 | $ 11,932.00

Redhill $ 6,538.00 | $ 5,460.00 | $ 11,998.00

Ang Mo Kio $ 3,813.00 | $ 4,192.00 | $ 8,005.00

Jurong $ 5,962.00 | $ 6,285.00 | $ 12,247.00

Rehab Center $ 3,084.00 | $ 2,828.00 | $ 5,912.00

(6) Financial year 2014 annual budget (Period: April 2013-March 2014)
The 26th Term 2" meeting of Board of Directors minuted the revenue budgeted $3,563,300 and
$ 4,744,060 as expenditure budget, with an estimation of § 1,180,760 as deficit (excluding the
costing for new clinic set up).

Summary of activities

(1) Family Funfair Day 2012
Buddha Of Medicine Welfare Society co-organized with Clinic for the Family Funfair Day in
May 2012 at Eunos MRT Station Along Sims Avenue Open Field, the 50% of net income $
43,933.40 for clinic medical fund. All employees help to promote the coupon sale, participate
in charity booth and participate in activities throughout the day.

(2) Walkathon 2012
Annual activity of Walkathon 2012 was held in July 29 and co-organized by the Buddha Of
Medicine Welfare Society.
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Venue at Hong Lim Park, along the Singapore River.
Flag-off by Venerable Ching Chung.

Fund raising amounting to $168,847.35,

Expenses is $ 17,271.69,

Net Income is $ 151,575.66.

(3) Professor Chen Sui on 11 November,2012
Topic: How To Live Healthy?
Physician Dr Tan Bee Ngoh on 18 November, 2012
Topic: "How To Be A Happy City People?
Physician Dr Long Hian Loong on 25 November, 2012
Topic: “The Deciding Factors for Treatment of Breast Cancer with Usage of TCM
in the Era of Mainstream Therapy”.
Formal Anniversary Ceremony on 25 November, 2012 at Singapore Buddhist Free Clinic
Building, Venerable Fa Hui hosted the ceremony on behalf of President. About 400 guests
attended the ceremony.
Maha Bodhi School students presented the Chinese Instruments performance.
43" Anniversary Celebration received donation of $ 501,009.33.
Expenditure is $39,692.85. Net Income is $ 461,316.48
Long Service Award was presented with a total value of $ 6,100.00.
There were 27 physicians and clinic assistants awarded the long service award.
Five years service award: Lai Kum Lin, Lim Yoke Yong, Lai Sih Feng, Chua Cheng,
Goh Choon Hiong, Tan Tein Lin, Chua Geok Leng,
Chan Geok Eng, Sim Lee Hiang, Mok Mee Yee,
Seng Puay Hwang, Lim Bee Lian, Goh Hai Meng and
Wong Quee Fah.
Ten years service award: Chong Wai Leng, Ngan Keng Yong and Ong Tua Bey.
Fifteen years service award:  Sick Shu Fai, Ang Kim San and Teo Ah Moi.
Twenty years service award: ~ Seck Mun Ho, Low Hui Lin, Chua Seng Soon,
Loy Yee Sian, Woo Lee Koon and Saw Seow Kian.
Forty years service award: Lim Cha Kong.

(4) Flag Day2013
OnMarch 9, 2013 Saturday was the National Flag Day, there were thousand volunteer participated
in this fund raising event. Donation cans issuance was 1153,
Fund raised was $151,240.55,
Expenses was $ 9,941.10,
Net Income was $141,299.45.

(5) Cantonese Opera 2013
The fund raising event Cantonese Opera 2013 organized by KMSPKS on 23/24 March, 2013 at
Esplanade Theatre. Two nights performance by Guangdong Cantonese Opera Troupe and the
wonderful group presents classic Cantonese music.
The Leading Artists are:
Ding Fan, Ni Hui Ying, Jiang Wen Tuan, Su Chun Mei, Li Chun Sheng, Lin Jia Bao, etc.,
Musical Director: Bu Can Rong.
Tickets priced at $500(VIP), $188, $148, $88, $68 and $38.
Two evenings income amounting to $1,298,545.80,
Expenditure was $224,631.22,
Net Income was $1,073,914.58 for medical fund.
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(6)

(7

®)

©)

(10)

Cooperation with Southeast CDC project

Southeast CDC sponsored pro-family activities for the sponsorship fee of $5,000.00.

On 29 July, 2012 there was fund raising event of Walkathon 2012 to encourage family members
to participate in the Walkathon.

On 18 August,2012 there was Buddhism film "Buddha Story In Cartoon" and "Small Print"
provided by VWO for Buddhist Film Festival.

To complement with the Annual Celebration, there were medical talks provided to Primary
School (Eunos and Fengshan) by the Physicians:

Tanjong Pagar Branch: Physician Tan Chu Song,

Geylang Main Clinic: Physician Lim Yoke Yong and Ang Kim San.

Accepted the interview by "Lianhe Zaobao" for the publication.

Main Clinic are Physicians Koh Moh Cheng and Lim Chin Choo to talk about the Cancer
Treatment during the month of October and November.

Physician Lim Yoke Yong being interviewed by “Lianhe Zaobao about the TCM treatment for
hearing problem.

Physicians Koh Moh Cheng, Lim Chin Choo, Ang Kim San, Tan Chew Song, Foo Tze Pin and
Han Ing Choo to reply the readers’questions against the treatment of sickness.

With effective from year 2013, there are monthly medical talks to be conducted by the Physicians
at Main Clinic Building:

The first physician to start medical talk is Physician Ang Kim San, topic was “How to Live More
Healthy?”

Total number of people attended the talk was 52.

Ruili Ni Salon haircuts fundraising
Our patient Li Pei Zhu is operating hair salon, offered the charity haircuts to the public on 24
December 2012 to raise the fund for our Cancer Treatment Centre to benefit more patients.

Hall at 7 floor activities and records:

On 5 January, 2013 provided the space for “Association for Traditional Tibetan Medicine
Singapore”, the group donated $2,400.00 for our medical fund.

On 27 April, 2013 provided the space for “Rangjung Yeshe Oddiyana”, the group donated
$2,100.00 for our medical fund.

Employee Profile

(1)

2

Total number of employees

Administrative Staff :17 people

Headquarters: CEO(1), General Manager(1), Administrative Assistant(1), Accounts Assistant(1),
Finance/Admin Assistants(2),Branch Managers(5), Clinic Assistant Manager(6).

Operations Staff: 67 people

TCM Physicians(24), Clinic Assistants(35),Driver (1) and Cleaner(7)

Total number of employees is 84.

Promotion of Employees

Cancer treatment center establishment:

Mobilization of the Physicians and Clinic Assistants are as follows:

Chan Geok Eng promoted to Assistant Manager.

Physicians are Koh Moh Cheng and Lim Chin Choo.

Physician Chua Cheng take up the afternoon shift in the consultation section.
Clinic Assistant Lim Bee Lian resigned.
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(3) Year End Variable Bonus:
In addition to the 13" month AWS and annual leave incentives, there was 0.5 to 0.75 months
variable bonus determined by performance appraisal rating.

(4) Employee Benefits

4.1 QBE Insurance by Agent “Pana Harrison (Asia) Pte Ltd”, insured amount of $1,000,000 to
cover the public liability risks by Clinical Staff.

4.2 All employees eligible for Hospitalization Benefits:
Medical Fee Reimbursement: $100-$200 per annum subject to the working hours of the
employment.
Hospitalization Insurance: Insured with AIA, 2012 annual premium was $26,100 (age entry
limit 65 years old, the insured maximum age up to 70 years old).

4.3 Redhill Branch clinic assistant Lim Ham Khuan had serviced the clinic 20 years, early March
2013 diagnosed with liver cancer, the Board of Directors granted the special funding of
$10,000.00 for treatment.

(5) Staff uniforms
Replaced all Assistant Manager, Clinic Assistants and General Workers’uniforms, new uniform
adopted green series, designed by the CYC.

(6) Job training

6.1 Those physicians participated in continuing education in traditional Chinese medicine are
entitled to apply for each course or an annual allowance of up to 75%, capped at $500, with the
official receipt reimbursement.

6.2 Sponsored TCM Diploma course in Chinese Medicine Pharmacy for the employee Chan Geok Eng.
Tuition fee of $1,926. She is currently employed at Cancer Treatment Centre as Center Assistant
Manager.
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SINGAPORE BUDDHIST FREE CLINIC

(Registration No: S69SS0009J)
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SINGAPORE BUDDHIST FREE CLINIC
(Registration No: $S69SS0009J)

Statement by Board of Directors

In the opinion of the Board, the accompanying financial statements of Singapore Buddhist Free Clinic
(the “Society”) are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Charities Act, Chapter
37, the Societies Act, Chapter 311 and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Society as at 31 March 2013 and of the results, changes in
funds and cash flows for the reporting year ended on that date and at the date of this statement there
are reasonable grounds to believe that the Society will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall

due.

The Board approved and authorised these financial statements for issue.

On Behalf of the Board

Sik Kwang Sheng
President

Secretary General

Yap Ching Wi
Treasurer

Singapore
5 July 2013
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RSM Chio Lim

Audit - Tax + Advisory
RSM Chio Lim LLP
8 Wilkie Road, #03-08, Wilkie Edge, Singapore 228095
, T+65 6533 7600
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of the wwwRSMChioLim.com.sg

Singapore Buddhist Free Clinic (Registration No: $69550009.)

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Singapore Buddhist Free Clinic (the
“Society”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2013, and the statement
of financial activities, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the reporting year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, the Societies Act, Chapter 311 (the
“Societies Act”), and the Charities Act, Chapter 37 (the “Charities Act") and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
Society’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Society’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

2

Audit  F+65 6594 7811 info@rsmchiolim.com.sq Tax F+6565947822 tax@rsmchiolim.com.sg

RSM Chio Lim LLP is a member of the RSM network. Each member of the RSM network is an independent accounting and
advisory firm which practices in its own right. The RSM network is not itself a separate tegal entity in any jurisdiction.

Globally Connected
RSM International

Business Advisors to Growing Businesses
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of the
Singapore Buddhist Free Clinic (Registration No: $69550009J)

-2 -
Opinion

in our opinion, the financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards, so as to present fairly, in all material respects, the state of affairs of the Society
as at 31 March 2013 and the results, changes in funds and cash flows of the Society for the reporting
year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion:

(a) The accounting and other records required by the regulations enacted under the Societies Act
to be kept by the Society have been properly kept in accordance with those regulations; and

(b) The fund-raising appeals held during the reporting year have been carried out in accordance
with regulation 6 of the Societies Regulations issued under the Societies Act and proper
accounts and other records have been kept of the fund-raising appeal.

During the course of our audit, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that during
the reporting year

(a) The use of the donation monies was not in accordance with the objectives of the Society as
required under regulation 16 of the Charities (Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations;
and

(b) The Society has not complied with the requirements of regulation 15 (Fund-raising expenses)

of the Charities (Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations.

Ladnlrs)

RSM Chio Lim LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

5 July 2013

Partner-in-charge of audit: Chan Sek Wai
Effective from year ended 31 March 2013
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SINGAPORE BUDDHIST FREE CLINIC
(Registration No: S69SS0009J)

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2013

Notes
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 10
Total Non-Current Assets
Current Assets
Inventories 11
Other Receivables 12
Other Assets 13
Cash and Cash Equivalents 14
Total Current Assets
Total Assets
FUNDS AND LIABILITIES
Funds
Accumulated Fund 16
Health Endowment Fund 16
Capital Reserve 17
Total Funds

Current Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables 15
Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

2013 2012
$ $
6,948,694 7,013,431
6,948,694 7,013,431

95,058 58,034
99,401 10,528
18,176 21,485
8,333,078 7,141,216
8,545,713 7,231,263
15,494,407 14,244,694
17,635,909 16,922,649
(4,463,555) (4,969,546)
2,202,372 2,202,372
15,374,726 14,155,475
119,681 89,219
119,681 89,219
119,681 89,219
15,494,407 14,244,694

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SINGAPORE BUDDHIST FREE CLINIC

(Registration No: S69SS0009J)

Statement of Changes in Funds
Year Ended 31 March 2013

Current Year

Opening balance at 1 April 2012
Movement in Fund;

Surplus for the Year

Closing balance at 31 March 2013

Previous Year:

Opening balance at 1 April 2011
Movement in Fund:

Surplus for the Year

Closing balance at 31 March 2012

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Health
Accumulated Endowment Capital
Fund Fund Reserve Total
$ $ $

16,922,649 (4,969,546) 2,202,372 14,155,475

713,260 505,991 - 1,219,251
17,635,909 (4,463,555) 2,202,372 15,374,726
16,137,271 (5,080,464) 2,202,372 13,259,179

785,378 110,918 - 896,296
16,922,649 (4,969,546) 2,202,372 14,155,475




SINGAPORE BUDDHIST FREE CLINIC
(Registration No: S69SS0009.J)

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended 31 March 2013

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net Surplus for the Year

Adjustment for:

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Gain on Disposal of Other Financial Assets
Interest income

Operating Cash Flows before Changes in Working Capital
Other Receivables
Inventories

Other Assets
Trade and Other Payables

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest Received

Purchase of Plant and Equipment

Cash Restricted in Use Over 3 Months
Disposal of Other Financial Assets

Net Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Statement of Cash Flows,
Beginning Balance

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Statement of Cash Flows,
Ending Balance (Note 14A)

2013 2012
$ $
1,219,251 896,296
278,877 221,072

- (4,736)
(45,844) (35,712)
1,452,284 1,076,920
(68,454) ~
(37,024) 28,701
3,309 2,675
30,462 2,599
1,380,577 1,110,895
25,425 35,470
(214,140) (26,367)
(666,779) (720,853)
- 203,413
(855,494) (508,337)
525,083 602,558
1,812,630 1,210,072
2,337,713 1,812,630

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SINGAPORE BUDDHIST FREE CLINIC
(Registration No: S69SS0009.)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 March 2013

42

General

Singapore Buddhist Free Clinic (the “Society”) is established in Singapore under the Societies
Act, Chapter 311. It is also subject to the provisions of the Charities Act, Chapter 37. The
Society is an Institution of a Public Character (“IPC”).

The principal objective of the Society is to provide free medical care for the poor and needy.

The functional currency of the Society is Singapore Dollars and the financial statements are
presented in Singapore dollars.

The Society is registered and situated in Singapore. The registered office is: No. 48 Lorong
23 Geylang Singapore 388376.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of the Society
on the date indicated in the Statement by the Board.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Accounting Convention

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (“FRS”) and the related Interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) as issued by
the Singapore Accounting Standards Council. The financial statements are prepared on a
going concern basis under the historical cost convention except where an FRS requires an
alternative treatment (such as fair values) as disclosed where appropriate in these financial
statements.

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates
and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Apart from those involving estimations,
management has made judgements in the process of applying the Society's accounting
policies. The areas requiring management's most difficult, subjective or complex judgements,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed at the end of this footnote, where applicable.

10
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SINGAPORE BUDDHIST FREE CLINIC
(Registration No: S695S0009J)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
Revenue Recognition

The revenue amount is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable from the
gross inflow of economic benefits during the reporting year arising from the course of the
ordinary activities of the Society and it is shown net of related tax and subsidies.

(i) Donations

Revenue from donations are accounted for when received, except for committed
donations.

(i) Fund raising
Revenue from special event is recognised when the event takes place.
(iii) Rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services, which include registration fees, membership
subscription fees and clinical service fees that are of short duration is recognised
when the services are completed. The revenue amount from services is the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable from the gross inflow of economic benefits
during the period arising from the course of the ordinary activities of the entity and it is
shown net of related sales tax, estimated returns, discounts and volume rebates.

(iv) Investment and related revenue

Interest revenue is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest
rate.

Employee Benefits

Contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recorded as an expense as
they fall due. The entity's legal or constructive obligation is limited to the amount that it
agrees to contribute to an independently administered fund which is the Central Provident
Fund in Singapore (a government managed retirement benefit plan). For employee leave
entitlement the expected cost of short-term employee benefits in the form of compensated
absences is recognised in the case of accumulating compensated absences, when the
employees render service that increases their entittement to future compensated absences;
and in the case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur. A
liability for bonuses is recognised where the entity is contractually obliged or where there is
constructive obligation based on past practice.

Gifts In Kind

A gift in kind is recognised based on an estimate of the fair value at the date of the receipt of
the gift of the non-monetary asset or the grant of a right to the monetary asset. The gift is
recognised if the amount of the gift can be measured reliably and there is no uncertainty that
it will be received. No gifts in kind were recognised in the financial statements as it was
impractical to reliably measure the fair values of the gifts in kind received.

Income Tax

As a charity, the Society is exempt from tax on income and gains falling within section 13U(1)
of the Income Tax Act to the extent that these are applied to its charitable objects.

11
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SINGAPORE BUDDHIST FREE CLINIC
(Registration No: S69550009J)

44

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
Foreign Currency Transactions

The functional currency is the Singapore dollar as it reflects the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in
the functional currency at the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. At each end of the
reporting year, recorded monetary balances and balances measured at fair value that are
denominated in non-functional currencies are reported at the rates ruling at the end of the
reporting year and fair value dates respectively. All realised and unrealised exchange
adjustment gains and losses are dealt with in profit or loss except when recognised in other
comprehensive income and if applicable deferred in equity such as for qualifying cash flow
hedges. The presentation is in the functional currency.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis to allocate the gross carrying amounts of the

assets less their residual values over their estimated useful lives of each part of an item of
these assets. The annual rates of depreciation are as follows:

Freehold land - Not depreciated
Freehold building - 2%

Leasehold properties - 2%
Renovations - 10%

Plant and equipment - 33.3% to 16.6%

An asset is depreciated when it is available for use until it is derecognised even if during that
period the item is idle. Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial
statements.

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost on initial recognition and after initial
recognition at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the
carrying amount of the item and is recognised in profit or loss. The residual value and the
useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each end of the reporting year and, if
expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate, and the depreciation charge for the current and future periods are
adjusted.

Cost also includes acquisition cost, any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Subsequent cost are recognised as an asset only when it is probabie that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
when they are incurred.

12
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SINGAPORE BUDDHIST FREE CLINIC
(Registration No: S69SS0009J)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)

If fair value can be measured reliably, after the initial recognition as an asset at cost, an item
of property, plant and equipment (such as land, property, buildings, etc) is carried at a
revalued amount, being its fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are
made upon special circumstances and approved by board. There is no policy on the
regularity of revaluation. When an asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of a
revaluation, the increase is recognised in capital reserve except that the increase is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same
asset previously recognised in profit or loss. When an asset’s carrying amount is decreased,
the decrease is recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance
existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The decrease recognised in other
comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in equity under the heading of
capital reserve. The capital reserve included in funds is transferred directly to accumulated
fund when the asset is derecognised. However, some of the surplus is realised as the asset is
used as the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the
asset and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost and these transfers from capital
reserve to accumulated fund are not made through the other comprehensive income.

Operating Leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the leased assets are classified as operating leases. For operating leases, lease
payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial activities on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is
representative of the time pattern of the user's benefit, even if the payments are not on that
basis. Lease incentives received are recognised in the statement of financial activities as an
integral part of the total lease expense. Initial direct cost incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, an annual impairment test is
performed at the same time every year on an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life or
an intangible asset not yet available for use. The carrying amount of other non-financial
assets is reviewed at each end of the reporting year for indications of impairment and where
an asset is impaired, it is written down through profit or loss to its estimated recoverable
amount. The impairment loss is the excess of the carrying amount over the recoverable
amount and is recognised in profit or loss unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. The
recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). At each end of the reporting year
non-financial assets other than goodwill with impairment loss recognised in prior periods are
assessed for possible reversal of the impairment. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

13
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SINGAPORE BUDDHIST FREE CLINIC
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost (first in first out method) and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. A
write down on cost is made where the cost is not recoverable or if the selling prices have
declined. Cost includes all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Financial Assets
Initial recognition, measurement and derecognition:

A financial asset is recognised on the statement of financial position when, and only when,
the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The initial
recognition of financial assets is at fair value normally represented by the transaction price.
The transaction price for financial asset not classified at fair value through profit or loss
includes the transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the
financial asset. Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition or issue of financial assets
classified at fair value through profit or loss are expensed immediately. The transactions are
recorded at the trade date.

Irrespective of the legal form of the transactions performed, financial assets are derecognised
when they pass the “substance over form” based on the derecognition test prescribed by FRS
39 relating to the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership and the transfer of control.

Subsequent measurement:

Subsequent measurement based on the classification of the financial assets in one of the
following four categories under FRS 39 is as follows:

1. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: As at end of the reporting year
date there were no financial assets classified in this category.

2. Loans and receivables: Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Assets
that are for sale immediately or in the near term are not classified in this category.
These assets are carried at amortised costs using the effective interest method
(except that short-duration receivables with no stated interest rate are normally
measured at original invoice amount unless the effect of imputing interest would be
significant) minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an allowance account)
for impairment or uncollectibility. Impairment charges are provided only when there is
objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. The
methodology ensures that an impairment loss is not recognised on the initial
recognition of an asset. Losses expected as a result of future events, no matter how
likely, are not recognised. For impairment, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. Typically
the trade and other receivables are classified in this category.

14

IRER E PN PO O
Annual Report of AGM 2013



SINGAPORE BUDDHIST FREE CLINIC
(Registration No: S698S0009J)

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
Financial Assets (Cont’d)

3. Held-to-maturity financial assets: As at end of the reporting year date there were no
financial assets classified in this category.

4. Available-for-sale financial assets: As at end of the reporting year date there were no
financial assets classified in this category.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include bank and cash balances, on demand deposits and any
highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less. For
the statement of cash flows the item includes cash and cash equivalents less cash subject to
restriction and bank overdrafts payable on demand that form an integral part of cash
management,

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition, measurement and derecognition:

A financial liability is recognised on the statement of financial position when, and only when,
the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and it is
derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or
expires. The initial recognition of financial liability is at fair value normally represented by the
transaction price. The transaction price for financial liability not classified at fair value through
profit or loss includes the transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition or issue of financial
liability classified at fair value through profit or loss are expensed immediately. The
transactions are recorded at the trade date. Financial iiabilities including bank and other
borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless there is an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting year.

Subsequent measurement:

Subsequent measurement based on the classification of the financial liabilities in one of the
following two categories under FRS 39 is as follows:

1. Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: As at end of the reporting year date there
were no financial liabilities classified in this category.

2. Other financial liabilities: All liabilities, which have not been classified as in the
previous category fall into this residual category. These liabilities are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Trade and other payables and
borrowings are usually classified in this category. ltems classified within current trade
and other payables are not usually re-measured, as the obligation is usually known
with a high degree of certainty and settiement is short-term.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of current financial instruments approximate their fair values due to the
short-term maturity of these instruments and the disclosures of fair value are not made when
the carrying amount of current financial instruments is a reasonable approximation of the fair
value. The fair values of non-current financial instruments may not be disclosed separately
unless there are significant differences at the end of the reporting year and in the event the
fair values are disclosed in the relevant notes. The fair value of a financial instrument is
derived from an active market or by using an acceptable valuation technique. The
appropriate quoted market price for an asset held or liability to be issued is usually the current
bid price without any deduction for transaction costs that may be incurred on sale or other
disposal and, for an asset to be acquired or liability held, the asking price. If there is no
market, or the markets available are not active, the fair value is established by using an
acceptable valuation technique. The fair value measurements are classified using a fair value
hierarchy of 3 levels that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements, that is, Level 1 for the use of quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities; Level 2 for the use of inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and Level 3 for the use of inputs for the asset or liability
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). The level is determined
on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety. Where observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable
inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement. The maximum exposure to credit risk is:
the total of the fair value of the financial assets; the maximum amount the entity could have to
pay if the guarantee is called on; and the full amount of any payable commitments at the end
of the reporting year.

Funds

Fund balances restricted by outside sources are so indicated and are distinguished from
unrestricted funds allocated to specific purposes if any by action of the management.
Externally restricted funds may only be utilised in accordance with the purposes established
by the source of such funds and are in contrast with unrestricted funds over which
management retains full control to use in achieving any of its institutional purposes.

Provisions

A liability or provision is recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. A provision is made using best estimates of the amount required in
settlement and where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount recognised
is the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense. Changes in estimates are reflected in profit or loss in the
reporting year they occur.
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2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
Government Grants

A government grant is recognised at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the
conditions attaching to it will be complied with and that the grant will be received. A grant in
recognition of specific expenses is recognised as income over the periods necessary to match
them with the related costs that they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. A
grant related to depreciable assets is allocated to income over the period in which such assets
are used in the project subsidised by the grant. A government grant related to assets, including
non-monetary grants at fair value, is presented in the statement of financial position.

Critical Judgements, Assumptions and Estimation Uncertainties

There were no critical judgements made in the process of applying the accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
There were no key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting year, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting year.

3. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

A related party includes the board and key management of the Society. It also includes an
entity or person that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common or joint
control with these persons; members of the key management personnel or close members of
the family of any individual referred to herein and others who have the ability to control, jointly
control or significantly influence by or for which significant voting power in such entity resides
with, directly or indirectly, any such individual.

3.1. Key management compensation:
2013 2012
$ $
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 171,513 58,775

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the society, directly or indirectly. The above
amounts for key management compensation are for two persons (2012: one person).

None of the top three highest paid staff received more than $100,000 in annual remuneration
each.

The above amounts are included under employee benefits expense. Included in the above
amounts are the following items:

3.2. Board compensation:

2013 2012
$ $
Remuneration of board member - 6,340
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3.

50

Related Party Relationships and Transactions (Cont’d)

3.2. Board compensation (Conf’d):

The Board, or people connected with them, have not received remuneration, or other benefits,
from the Society for which they are responsible, or from institutions connected with the
Society except for one person in 2012.

There is no claim by the Board members for services provided to the Society, either by
reimbursement to the Board or by providing the board members with an allowance or by
direct payment to a third party.

All Board members are required to read and understand the conflict of interest policy in place
and make full disclosure of interests, relationships and holding that could potentially result in
conflict of interests. When a conflict of interest situation arises, the members or staff shall
abstain from participating in the discussion, decision making and voting on the matter.

Tax Deductible Receipts

The Society enjoys a concessionary tax treatment whereby qualifying donors are granted
double tax deduction for the donations made to the Society. The current IPC status is granted
by Ministry of Health for the period from 1 October 2011 to 30 September 2013.

2013 2012
$ $
Tax-exempt receipts issued for donations collected during
the reporting year 3,235,448 2,434,556

Fund Raising Income and Expenditure

In accordance with the Charities (Institution of a Public Character) Regulations, the Society is
required to disclose fund-raising appeals with gross receipts of more than $1 million.

Fund Raising
Expenses for Net Fund Raising
Income for Health  Health Endowment Income for Health
Endowment Fund Fund Endowment Fund
$ $ $
2013
Cantonese Opera Classics
Charity Night 1,298,545 (224,631) 1,073,914

There is no such fund-raising appeal that required to be disclosed in 2012.

Investment Income

013 2012

$ $
Interest income from financial institutions 45,844 35,712
Gains on disposal of other financial assets - 4,736
Total 45,844 40,448
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7.

Employee Benefits Expense

2013 2012
$ $
Employee benefits expense 1,763,158 1,506,581
Contribution to defined contribution plan 77,585 128,424
Other benefits - ‘ 5,540 24,408
Total employee benefits expense 1,846,283 1,659,413

The employee benefits expense is presented in the Statement of Financial Activities as
follows:

2013 2012
$ $
Administrative expenses 334,648 191,601
Charitable expenses 1,611,635 1,467,812
Total employee benefits expense 1,846,283 1,659,413

Items in the Statement of Financial Activities

In addition to the charges and credits disclosed elsewhere in the notes to the financial
statements, the statement of financial activities includes the following charges:

2013 201
$ $
Audit fees io the independent auditors 10,000 9,500

Income tax
The Society is exempted from tax on income and gain falling within section 13U(1) of the

Singapore Income Tax Act to the extent that these are applied to its charitable objects.
Therefore, no provision for income tax has been made in the financial statements.
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52

Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2011

Additions

Disposals
At 31 March 2012
Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 2013

Presented by:
Cost

Valuation
Total

Accumulated
Depreciation

At 1 April 2011
Depreciation for the
year

Disposals

At 31 March 2012
Depreciation for the
year

Disposals

At 31 March 2013

Net book value
At 1 April 2010
At 31 March 2012
At 31 March 2013

Freehold Freehold Leasehold Plant and
Land Building Properties Renovations eguipment Total
$ $ $ $ $ $
2,000,000 3,336,085 2,582,364 1,525,115 544,231 9,987,795
- - - - 26,367 26,367
- - - - (2,130) (2,130)
2,000,000 3,336,085 2,582,364 1,525,115 568,468 10,012,032
- - - 56,624 157,516 214,140
- - - - (19,116)  (19,116)
2,000,000 3,336,085 2,582,364 1,581,739 706,868 10,207,056
- 3,336,085 — 1,581,739 706,868 5,624,692
2,000,000 - 2,582,364 - ~ 4,582,364
2,000,000 3,336,085 2,582,364 1,581,739 706,868 10,207,056
- 266,886 877,594 1,142,411 492,768 2,779,659
- 66,722 59,046 60,455 34,849 221,072
- - — — (2,130) (2,130)
- 333,608 936,640 1,202,866 525,487 2,998,601
- 66,722 59,046 66,118 86,991 278,877
_ - - - (19,116)  (19,116)
- 400,330 005,686 1,268,984 593,362 3,258,362
2,000,000 3,069,199 1,704,770 382,704 51,463 7,208,136
2,000,000 3,002,477 1,645,724 322,249 42,981 7,013,431
2,000,000 2,935,755 1,586,678 312,755 113,506 6,948,694

Fully depreciated plant and equipment still in use had a cost of $1,919,114 (2012: $1,940,830).

The freehold land, freehold building and leasehold properties owned by the Society are as

follows:

Locations

a) 48 Lorong 23 Geylang, Singapore 388376
b) 44 Craig Road Singapore 089682

c) Block 77 #01-519 Indus Road Singapore 160077
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10. Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)

In 2006, the Society demolished and reconstructed its freehold building at 48 Lorong 23
Geylang, Singapore 388376. In relation to the reconstruction of the building, the board had
engaged an independent valuer to revalue the aforesaid land and other two leasehold
buildings owned by the Society. The revaluation was conducted by Realty International
Associates Pte Ltd in February and May 2006 based on the existing use basis to reflect the
actual market state and circumstances as of the valuation dates and not as of either a past or
future date. The Society has revalued the freehold land and leasehold properties in the
Society’s financial statements and credited capital reserve the same amount during the
reporting year ended 31 March 2006. There is no valuation performed subsequent to these
dates.

It is the policy of the Society that the freehold land and leasehold buildings would not be
revalued on a regular basis. Revaluations are only made upon special circumstances and
approved by board.

For each revalued class of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount that would
have been recognised had the assets been carried under the cost model are as follows:

2013 2012
$ $

Freehold {and:

Cost 100,000 100,000
Net book value 100,000 100,000
LLeasehold properties:

Cost 2,860,841 2,860,841
Net book value 1,877,959 1,935,176

The freehold land and property and leasehold properties are held in trust by the Board of
Trustees.

The depreciation expense is presented in the Statement of Financial Activities as follows:

2013 2012
$ $
Administrative expenses 40,297 27,992
Charitable expenses 238,580 193,080
Total depreciation expense 278,877 221,072
11. Inventories
2013 2012
$ $
Medical consumables and supplies 95,058 58,034

There are no inventories pledged as security for liabilities.
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12. Other Receivables

Interest receivable from fixed deposits
Other receivable (a)

2013 2012
$ $
20,419 10,528
78,982 -
99,401 10,528

(a) Other receivable arose from the ticket sales for a fund raising event, Cantonese Opera
Classics Charity Night. The amount was received subsequent to the end of the reporting

year.

13. Other Assets

Prepayments
Deposits

14, Cash and Cash Equivalents

Not restricted in use

Interest earning balances

2013 2012
$ $
7,266 11,355
10,910 10,130
18,176 21,485
2013 2012
$ $
8,333,078 7,141,216
6,564,698 5,893,476

The rate of interest for the cash on interest earning balances was between 0.10% to 1.75%

(2012: 0.10% to 1.75%) per annum,

14A. Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Statement of Cash Flows:

Amount as shown above

Cash restricted in use over 3 months

Cash and cash equivalents for statement of cash flows
purposes at end of the year

15. Trade and Other Payables

Outside parties and accrued liabilities
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$ $
8,333,078 7,141,216
(5,995,365)  (5,328,586)
2,337,713 1,812,630
2013 2012
$ $

119,681 89,219
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16. Fund Account Balances
2013 2012
$ $
Unrestricted Funds:
Accumulated fund (i) 17,635,909 16,922,649
Health endowment fund (ii) (4,463,555) (4,969,546)
Total unrestricted funds 13,172,354 11,953,103
Ratio of Unrestricted Funds to Annual Operating
Expenditure (times) 3.43 3.7
() The accumulated funds of the Society provide financial stability and the means for

the development of the Society’s activities. The Society intends to maintain the funds
at a level sufficient for its operating needs. The board reviews the level of funds
regularly for the Society’s continuing obligations.

(ii) The health endowment fund of the Society represents the fund use to provide free
medical care for the poor and needy. The incoming source of fund is mainly derived
from tax deductible donations from public.

17. Capital Reserve
in 2006, the Society had commissioned Realty International Associates Pte Ltd to revalue the
freehold land and two leasehold properties (Note 10). The Capital Reserve arises from the
valuation aforesaid properties held under property, plant and equipment.

18. Other Matters
The assets and liabilities representing each category of fund should be summarised and
analysed between those funds in the notes to the financial statements. However, the assets and

liabilities have not been allocated to the respective funds as management is of the opinion it is
impracticable to do so.

19. Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks
19A. Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The following table summarises the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at the end of the reporting year by FRS 39 categories:

2013 2012
$ $

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 8,333,078 7,141,216
Other receivables 99,401 10,528
At end of the year 8,432,479 7,151,744
Financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables measured at amortised cost 119,681 89,219
At end of the year 119,681 89,219

Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

There are no significant fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial
position.
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19C.

19D.
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56

Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks (Cont’d)
Financial Risk Management

The main purpose for holding or issuing financial instruments is to raise and manage the
finances for the Society's operating, investing and financing activities. There are exposures
to the financial risks on the financial instruments such as credit risk, liquidity risk and market
risk comprising interest rate, currency risk and price risk exposures. The management has
certain practices for the management of financial risks. However these are not documented in
formal written documents. The following guidelines are followed: All financial risk
management activities are carried out and monitored by senior management staff. All
financial risk management activities are carried out following good market practices.

There have been no changes to the exposures to risk; the objectives, policies and processes
for managing the risk and the methods used to measure the risk.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost are at a carrying amount that is a
reasonable approximation of fair value.

Credit Risk on Financial Assets

Financial assets that are potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk and failures by
counterparties to discharge their obligations in full or in a timely manner consist principally of
cash balances with banks, cash equivalents and receivables. The maximum exposure to
credit risk is the fair value of the financial assets at the end of the reporting year. Credit risk
on cash balances with banks and any other financial instruments is limited because the
counter-parties are entities with acceptable credit ratings. For credit risk on receivables an
ongoing credit evaluation is performed of the debtors financial condition and a loss from
impairment is recognised in profit or loss. The exposure to credit risk is disseminated to the
relevant persons concerned and compliance is monitored by management.

As at the end of reporting year there were no amounts that were impaired.
Liquidity risk
All liabilities of the Society are due within one year.

The liquidity risk refers to the difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. It is expected that all
the liabilities will be paid at their contractual maturity. The average credit period taken to
settle trade payables is about 30 days (2012: 30 days). The classification of the financial
assets is shown in the statement of financial position as they may be available to meet
liquidity needs and no further analysis is deemed necessary.

The Society has sufficient cash balances to support cash commitments for their existing
liabilities. The classification of the financial assets is shown in the statement of financial
position as they may be available to meet liquidity needs and no further analysis is deemed
necessary.
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19. Financial Instruments: Information on Financial Risks (Cont’d)
19F. Interest Rate Risk

The interest rate risk exposure is mainly from changes in fixed rate and floating interest rates.
The interest from financial assets including cash balances is not significant.

19G. Foreign Currency Risks
There is insignificant exposure to foreign currency risk as part of its normal business.

Sensitivity analysis: The effect on post-tax surplus is not significant.

20. Changes and Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards

For the current reporting year the following new or revised Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards were adopted. The new or revised standards did not require any modification of
the measurement method or the presentation in the financial statements.

FRS No. Title

FRS 1 Amendments to FRS 1 — Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive
Income

FRS 12 Deferred Tax (Amendments) — Recovery of Underlying Assets (*)

FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendments) - Transfers of Financial
Assets (*)

(*) Not relevant to the Society.
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58

Future Changes in Financial Reporting Standards

The following new or revised Singapore Financial Reporting Standards that have been issued
will be effective in future. The transfer to the new or revised standards from the effective
dates is not expected to result in material adjustments to the financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows for the following year.
Effective date for
periods beginning

FRS No. Title on or after
FRS 1 Amendments to FRS 1 — Presentation of ltems of Other

Comprehensive Income 1 Jul 2012
FRS 1 Amendment to FRS 1 Presentation of Financial

Statements (Annual Improvements) 1 Jan 2013
FRS 16 Amendment to FRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

(Annual Improvements) 1Jan 2013
FRS 19 Employee Benefits (Revised) 1 Jan 2013
FRS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

(Amendments) (*) 1 Jul 2012
FRS 27 Separate Financial Statements (Revised) (*) 1 Jan 2014
FRS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Revised)

() 1 Jan 2014
FRS 32 Amendment to FRS 32 Financial instruments:

Presentation (Annual Improvements) 1 Jan 2013
FRS 107 Amendments to FRS 32 and FRS 107 titled Offsetting

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (*) 1 Jan 2013
FRS 110 Consolidated Financial Statements (*) 1 Jan 2014
FRS 111 Joint Arrangements (*) 1 Jan 2014
FRS 112 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (*) 1 Jan 2014
FRS 110 Amendments to FRS 110, FRS 111 and FRS 112 (*) 1 Jan 2014
FRS 113 Fair Value Measurements 1 Jan 2013
INT FRS 120  Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface

Mine (*) 1 Jan 2013

(*) Not relevant to the Society.
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CONSTITUTION OF
SINGAPORE BUDDHIST FREE CLINIC

HME AL BT ER

Name Z#f

The Singapore Buddhist Free Clinic (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Clinic’).

B Aotz fr (LURNfRifR “4pr )

Registered Office 3 /i #i kit

The registered office of the Clinic shall be at No 48, Lorong 23, Geylang, Singapore 388376.
2% FT i W LA 25 82345485, HE[X 388376

Objects =8

The Clinic’s objects are: 7 it 52 B J&:

3.1

32

Providing free, quality and accessible general and specialised Traditional Chinese
Medicine services to relieve the sufferings of patients, their families and carers regardless
of race and religion in Singapore;

AR E, A IBER AR, RmERm, kS AH @M Ll ie g ER
55, PRI N B RN B IRORL 2 A i

Promoting, conducting and engaging in research using Traditional Chinese Medicine to
treat terminal diseases, and collecting and disseminating information relating to Traditional
Chinese Medicine and exchanging of such information with other bodies having similar
objects in Singapore.

TERT YRR, HEShAT 5T i R BRIG T e e, WEEM AP EEILE, S5HAbBZEM
o B R BIASHIRE.

Principle of Objects 525 JF

4.1

4.2

The Clinic’s objects principle is to embody and enshrine Buddhist’s teachings of
compassion and wisdom in the building of a gracious and harmonious society by involving
the public and authorities in unity.

AP R B IR T BT S RBR M MEESEEZH, L — PRI

N

This rule shall be the guiding principle in furthering the objects of the Clinic but shall not
be construed as part of the objects of the Clinic.

ARFEHEAFT R E I EN, EAETAZEE N —#0,

Membership £ 5t 7%

5.1

An application for membership must be proposed by existing member and may be
approved or rejected by the Board of Directors.

HUE A5 2 LA 2 03 A 43 I 22 O HEHE.
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5.6

5.7

5.8

59

The candidate’s full name and address and occupation and name of the proposer must be
duly filled in and submitted for approval by the Board of Directors.

HE AN E IR S B A i 44, b MR PR e s 2,

Membership of the Clinic shall be opened to:
2 TR I

5.3.1 Individuals (over the age of twenty one years) who are interested in furthering the
work of the Clinic and who have paid any annual membership fee;

NN (218 BERESIA TR S, RMIE 2 RE,

5.3.2 Any corporate organization (‘member organization’) which is interested in
furthering the work of the Clinic and has paid any annual membership fee.

EATEM AR RS AR S, KME = RRE,

Annual Membership Fee fixed at $100.00
AR LR E N 1007T,

Each member organization shall appoint an individual to represent it and to vote on its
behalf at meetings of the Clinic; and may appoint an alternate to replace its appointed
representative at any meeting of the Clinic if the appointed representative is unable to
attend.

B E R N E R T AR 2P R AL, Wl s E 7 — N
FrANTE R B AR AT AT 23

Each member organization shall notify the name of the representative appointed by it and
of any alternate to the secretary of the clinic (‘Secretary’). If the representative or alternate
resigns from or otherwise leaves the member organization, he or she shall forthwith cease
to be the representative of the member organization. The representative appointed shall
be subject to the approval of the Board of Directors.

B - RBIA = N E R AL 7B AN Tl AR, R IRAE LA
BOTIZANMA, HACGRTIRABUE L, 382 (UR AR 2 A BT 8 5F 2 HUE.

Upon payment of the membership fee within one month of approval of membership, every
new member or member organization shall be furnished with a copy of the Constitution.

ZRTHMEAZFEN - ANNELZ =0, F—20a Ry AR — R,

If any individual or member organization fails to pay the membership fee within fourteen
days after it becomes due and the Secretary sends notice in writing to the address as
recorded in the books of the Clinic for payment within fourteen days, then the Board
of Directors may terminate the membership without further notice if the individual or
member organization fails to pay.

AT N AR 2 BFEAL T A0 7 B F15 J5 (14 R N BcA 8 = o, #HHa
A DIEATT B A ATE AT 00 F BUH H RS,

A member may resign his or its membership at any time by letter addressed to the secretary
of the Clinic, but is liable for his or its membership fee for the year during which he or it
resigns.

23 ST DATEAR AT Ao DL 5 I R 248, (A STES0E 2 0 9%,
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5.10 The Board of Directors may at its absolute discretion terminate the membership of any

5.11

individual who or member organization which fails to observe the Constitution or whose
conduct, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, renders him or it unfit for membership.
An expelled member is not entitled to any refund of membership fee and remains liable
for membership fee for the year which he or it is expelled.

AT NS A 2 GRS R ST AR, R SA RIS, PO
)2 AR REEORIBIE AT A M = A 9%, A THLAIE = fL 3t

Any member subject to termination of membership is to be notified in writing. An
aggrieved member may appeal within a month from the date of his expulsion to the
General Meeting of members, whose decision shall be final.

B2 B 2R 2% T HmE M, 2R 2 5a] DIFE — A H i Bk,
2 AR R P E R A I 0L E.,

Board of Directors EH £

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

The management of the Clinic shall be in the hands of a Board of Directors consisting
of fixed number of thirteen members elected by disclosed ballot every two years at the
alternate Annual General Meeting of the Clinic being:

AFTHERSEHE, EESHAEMBALR, SRENS RSP IETE,

6.1.1 The President, Secretary and Treasurer;

R, FRAS I B

6.1.2 Ten elected members who shall hold office as designated by the President.

1007 B 5, BRAL 0 &AL,

All members of the Board of Directors shall retire from office together at the end of two
years after the date on which they came into office but they may be re-elected with the
exception of the Treasurer or member holding appointment equivalent to a treasurer who
may be re-elected after a lapse of two years.

JIr G 2 T PRARAL I I B SRR A AL, (H ] DU AT, BRI B i 2 1A 5 W B
ARG, AT AT ATERE RS 09 PR AR J5 F B8 2 1.

The proceedings of the Board of Directors shall not be invalidated by any vacancy or
failure to appoint or any defect in the appointment of a member of the Board of Directors.
FHESWUARH THEAES, WA TRMEAALE, sk 3oET
ERER?, T A AT AL,

No person shall be entitled to act as a member of the Board of Director whether on a first
or on any subsequent entry into office until after signing in and making a declaration of
acceptance and willingness to act as director of the Clinic.

DA N DI IE A E BT, A s F AL,

All members of the Board of Directors shall be honorary.

P i 4 8 Ja o UL

Determination of Membership of Board of Directors

EERRERE

7.1

A member of the Board of Directors shall cease to hold office if he or she:

% 3 AE LU 8 R & 1R LR
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7.1.1 Becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangement or composition with his or her
creditors generally; or

B SO AT A 5055 2 HE, 50

7.1.2 Becomes incapable by reason of mental disorder, illness or injury of managing and
administering his or her own affairs as determined by the Board of Directors; or,

SR TUNRREEL, Bom sz, o

7.1.3 Is frequently absent without the permission of the Board of Directors from meetings
and the Board of Directors resolve that his or her office be vacated; or

REAVFEF B L, 5

7.1.4 Is directly or indirectly interested in any contract with the Clinic and fails to declare
the nature of his or her interest; or

HESR VAT SA A A SRR H, %

7.1.5 Notifies to the Board of Directors a wish to resign; or

[ B S 4 R, o

7.1.6 Is convicted, whether in Singapore or elsewhere, of any offence involving dishonesty
or fraud or moral turpitude; or

FEB N5 A 3t 0 BN IS SOV ER, BB REIE R, 5U

7.1.7 Directly or indirectly misconducts or mismanages the administration of any charity.

H R B A AT A 22 DU A BN S AT 0,

7.2 A member of the Board of Directors shall not vote in respect of any contract in which he
or she is interested or any matter arising out of it, and if he or she does so vote, his or her
vote shall not be counted.

HHNANIS HERER R A AN G2, R, BATIHAL

8.  Meetings and proceedings of the Board of Directors

EESUGE

8.1 The Board of Directors shall hold at least three ordinary meetings each year. A meeting
may be called at any time by the President or by any two members of the Board of
Directors upon not less than 7 days’ notice being given to the other members of the Board
of Directors of the matters to be discussed.

HHE SR RDIFRIR, 2P0 o SR AL R AT, A RITIE RN
27 HAh 20T R A @R,

8.2 The President shall act as chairman at meetings of the Board of Directors. If the President
is absent from any meeting, the members of the Board of Directors present shall choose
one of their number to be the chairman of the meeting before any other business is
transacted.

HHH TN IR, WRFMEE W, A — (58 A F R

8.3 No business shall be transacted unless there is a quorum. In the event of there being no
quorum present at the meeting, the meeting shall be held half an hour later at the same
place and should the number then present be still insufficient to form a quorum, those
present shall be considered a quorum.
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8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

9.1

92

DA R UAEREEEAN M, T IR ARREE AR, TG
ANIPAE SR IF, I A H BRI A B, B R T
RN,

Every matter shall be determined by a majority of votes of the members of the Board
of Directors present and voting on the question but in the case of equality of votes the
chairman of the meeting shall have a second or casting vote.

PR SRR, AR, ERA S IRBEA

The Board of Directors shall keep minutes for the purpose of the proceedings at the
meetings of the Board of Directors and any sub-committee.

HHME I Wi RN ZE B2 200,

The Board of Directors may from time to time make and alter rules for the conduct of their
business, the summoning and conduct of their meetings and the custody of documents.
No rule may be made which is inconsistent with this Constitution.

R Al LIREHE  T B, (E A AN A u] DL e AR,

The Board of Directors may appoint one or more sub-committees for the purpose of
making any inquiry or supervising or performing any function or duty which in the
opinion of the Board of Directors would be more conveniently undertaken or carried out
by a sub-committees provided that all acts and proceedings of any such sub-committees
shall be fully and promptly reported to the Board of Directors.

FEHN YR - EAN, ST F0EE, /NS e85 Kt
) 5 2R

Receipts and expenditure I A5 3 H

The funds of the Clinic, including all donations contributions and bequests, shall be paid
into one or more accounts operated by the Board of Directors in the name of the Clinic at
such banks as the Board of Directors shall from time to time decide. All cheques drawn
must be signed by at least two members of the Board of Directors as designated by the
President.

APl BF B RS ARSI, AR B A F 2 DIAR I & SO R T A, g
SCERER N T AR E 1) 2D AR

The funds belonging to the Clinic shall be applied only in furthering the objects. The
income and property of the Clinic whensoever derived shall be applied towards the
promotion of the objects of the Clinic as set forth in this Constitution and no portion
thereof shall be paid or transferred directly or indirectly by way of dividend or bonus or
otherwise howsoever by way of profit to the persons who at any time are or have been
members of the Clinic or to any of them or to any person claiming through any of them.
AT BT N THESIA R R B . AP FrA AR, Hid AT 128 iEsh
ARERMWER ST, ALTER> s LAY B B B AL A e B R iRl 3%, sl LR A H
it 7 e LE 25 A i 25 03

10. General Meetings < i k&

10.1 The supreme authority of the Clinic is vested in a general meeting of the members. The

Clinic shall hold its annual general meeting (‘ Annual General Meeting’) within six months
of the end of the financial year at such date, time and place as the Board of Directors
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shall appoint. All general meetings other than Annual General Meeting shall be called

Extraordinary General Meeting.

A m RO R RS, RESEVEAELS RGN HN B EFES
il

il
Kz, WRMGEHERZRE, WE2 RSN 2 500 8RR 52 AR
AN

10.2 The Secretary shall give at least 14 days’ notice of the Annual General Meeting to all
members of the Clinic. All members of the Clinic shall be entitled to attend and vote at
the meeting.

M T 14K A& 2 R IF @A, B 2 REE AU T 235 8L,

10.3 The President shall be the chairman of the Annual General Meeting but if he or she is
not present, before any other business is transacted, the members present shall appoint a
chairman of the meeting.

WAESRREM EW R, TEROREN, IR 2 APiEg— e F 5

ES1S

10.4 The Board of Directors shall present to each Annual General Meeting the report and
accounts of the Clinic for the previous financial year ended on 31st March.

R F SRR S E T3 H31H # R W B4 S

10.5 The Board of Directors may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting, and Extraordinary General Meeting shall also be convened on the requisition of
one-quarter of the total actual membership of the Clinic for the time being or any thirty
members of the Clinic, whichever is the less, upon notice in writing being given to the
Secretary setting forth the business to be transacted.
nENER AR iR, it I fa ke, lia A a7F
Y4 5 2 B R 2 A 2 ik 2 KR Y 70 22 — 30 0 (AR 35 9 b ) B4R
th, I SR P B IR,

10.6 The Extraordinary General Meeting shall be convened within two months from receiving
members’ requisition. If the Board of Directors does not within two months after the date
of the receipt of the written request proceed to convene an Extraordinary General Meeting,
the members who requested for the Extraordinary General Meeting shall convene the
Extraordinary General Meeting by giving 14 days’ notice to voting members setting forth
the business to be transacted and simultaneously posting the agenda on the Clinic’s notice
board.

Pl = RR 2T %8 2 RiERI A AN AT, WREFSAENDTHNA
H, BEORAFSUH S RIS T 14BN )G B2, A SRR AR 5K G
FEA P &,

11. Notice of general meeting £ i K < 3@ Al

11.1 All general meetings shall be called by at least 14 days’ notice in writing and the business
to be considered at such meetings shall be posted on the notice board of the Clinic.

Prf )2 R 280 2 /D EA TR B E A, A R BERIRNEEA P A 542,

11.2 The accidental omissions to give notice of a meeting to, or the non-receipt of the notice of
a meeting by, any person entitled to receive the notice shall not invalidate the proceedings
at that meeting.
AT AR R T 2@ 3, AR Oy @R, A B0 M el A 1R JT 2l
*, AREFERIZIR L,
013457 F 2 KAWEH
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12. Proceedings at general meetings k<8

12.1

122

12.3

124

12.5

The business to be transacted at an Annual General Meeting shall include the consideration
of the accounts, balance sheets, and the reports of the auditors, the election of members
of the Board of Directors in place of those retiring and the appointment of, and the fixing
of the remuneration of the auditors. At least ten members jointly may upon 7 days’ notice
being given to the Secretary state the business to be considered at the Annual General
Meeting.

WAERSAEREKH . %R, #itld, wEEE, ZREF M, e ik
RO R /DT E10 NI 44 7 KA K5 LUE 51 A AR,

No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum of members is
present at the time when the meeting proceeds to business. If within half an hour from the
time appointed for the meeting, a quorum is not present, the meeting, if convened on the
requisition of members, shall be dissolved; in any other case it shall be adjourned to the
same day in the next week, at the same time and place, or to such other day and at such
other time and place as the Board of Directors may determine; and if at the adjourned
meeting a quorum is not present within half an hour from the time appointed for the
meeting the members present shall be a quorum, but they shall have no power to alter,
amend or make additions or deletions to the Constitution.

AR E NN 2 RS A el AR, B2 AT < GRS IRAEE /)
I S AR AR, SO Z R, B A TR & R & R AE R /i
N EAREENE, EHa DI ET T — R — R, A AT s A
)3 5 T, R I AR AE /NN TS SRR R 1 A, A B IR E N
B, A BORRESS B SR,

The President of the Board of Directors shall chair every general meeting of the Clinic,
or if there is no such chair, or if he shall not be present within 15 minutes after the time
appointed for the holding of the meeting or is unwilling to act, the members of the Board
of Directors present shall elect one of their number to chair the meeting.

TN R — A2 R, MR FRAELS PN B, R
e H A — LA A R

If at any meeting no member of the Board of Directors is willing to act as chair or if no
member of the Board of Directors is present within 15 minutes after the time appointed
for holding the meeting, the members present shall choose one of their members to chair
the meeting.

MR BFREFERA NERF e, SUsasmcAESREHE, BFa R
DA Horp — i 2 5 P21

The President may, with the consent of any meeting at which a quorum is present (and
shall if so directed by the meeting), adjourned the meeting from time to time and from
place to place, but no business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting other than the
business left unfinished at the meeting from which the adjournment took place. When a
meeting is adjourned for 30 days or more, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given
as in the case of an original meeting. Otherwise it shall not be necessary to give any notice
of an adjournment or of the business to be transacted at an adjournment meeting.

E AT LR R L E AR, g T e sl . 2 PR AE30
KULER, DA TR HEM, ISR RETIE Z ANEAR AR,
HEHE BT A ICEE.

mu#ﬁ%éﬁkéﬁ%%65
Annual Report of AGM 2013



12.6 At any general meeting a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on a
show of hands unless a poll is demanded by the chair.

T2 R 2R IR A DL A TR0, BRI I R 2R BRI,

12.7 Unless a poll is so demanded, a declaration by the chair that a resolution has on a show of
hands been carried or carried unanimously, or by a particular majority, or lost and an entry
to that effect in the minutes of proceedings of the Clinic shall be conclusive evidence of
the fact without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour of or
against such resolution.
7R BRI IR, S ERITEA IR, NgR DT — B0l
o, SEEERGEE, SRS, R R AR,

12.8 In the case of an equality of votes, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, the chair of
the meeting shall be entitled to second or casting vote.

MERAFF RS ERL, BEBHMEN, SN FFASE R ERL
13. Attendances and votes of members £ it H} &N S5 E

13.1 Subject to clause 12.8 every member shall have one vote.
Bk TEE12.85%, B —{iex BURA LIRBUCRAL,

13.2 No member shall be entitled to attend and vote at any general meeting unless all money
presently payable to the Clinic has been paid.

EaMiF =i Dl LU AT < bR 2, FFRARIAL

13.3 No vote may be cast by proxy.
ARERIRIUR BRI,

13.4 No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voter except at the meeting or
adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to is tendered, and every vote not disallowed
at the meeting shall be valid. Any objection made in due time shall be referred to the chair
whose decision shall be final and conclusive.

X U 1 GRS HAEFE = R Sxt, ARATHY SO a2 R B 2 W EFF, &
WERFA R R ERL

14. Quorum ¥ EASK

The following numbers are required to form a quorum:

F R VOEE BT

14.1 at Board of Directors meetings, one-half of the number of members of the Board of
Directors for the time being, each being a member or a duly authorized representative of
a member organization;

o Fz DAl 2 H RO R L

14.2 at Annual General meetings, one-quarter of the total actual membership of the Clinic for
the time being or thirty members, whichever is the less, each being a member or a duly
authorized representative of a member organization;

WAER SISy 2 — 830 A ik e NB, A& R AL,
14.3 at Extraordinary General meetings convened by the Board of Directors, one-quarter of the

total actual membership of the Clinic for the time being or thirty members, whichever is the
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15.

14.4

14.5

less, each being a member or a duly authorized representative of a member organization;

HH AR 2 AR LIy 2 — 330 Aok E ABL, A& o,

at Extraordinary General meetings convened by members, two-thirds of the number
of requisition members, each being a member or a duly authorized representative of a
member organization.

g%ﬁ%*@%%%%%ﬁké,ugﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁzﬁziéﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ

at Audit Committee, Medical Committee, HR Committee, nomination / appointment
committee and the quorum is 50% .

FitZ e, BAZNa, ANTREZ IS, BERAZ ASI50% A E AN
5.

Trustees f§FEA

15.1

15.2

15.3

154

15.5

15.6

15.7

Any immovable property acquires by or given to the Clinic shall be vested in the Trustees
subject to a declaration of Trust.

AP NI A AT AE B,

The Trustees shall be elected by a general meeting from members who are Singapore
Citizens for the purpose of holding immovable property and other property of the Clinic.

fRFE AN RS IIA B A R 2 Rk,

Any trustee may at any time resign his trusteeship by submitting a notice of resignation
to the President of the Board of Directors.

AEAT AR T AT LUAE AT AT I fi€ 111 2 50 2 i3 52 e 52

If a trustee dies or becomes a lunatic or is of unsound mind or migrates overseas
permanently or is absent from Singapore for over a year as determined by the Board of
Directors, he or she shall be deemed to have resigned the trusteeship.

RIC N R e, i th, BREGEERE L L, B e s H sl
.

If a Trustee is guilty of misconduct of such kind as to render it undesirable that he or she
continues to become a Trustee, a general meeting shall be held to remove him or her from
trusteeship.

FIRNMEAT AR, P RESREEL ENMGETEE, SRS
THHARFE BT,

Vacancies in the trusteeship may be filled at a general meeting, but the total number of
trustees shall not be less than two nor more than five.

fRIE AR T2 R, MERZSA, &2,

A notice to remove a Trustee from trusteeship or to appoint a new trustee to fill a vacancy
shall be posted on the Clinic notice board not less than fourteen days before the date
appointed for the meeting. The removal or appointment of Trustee at such meeting shall
be notified to the Registrar of Societies and Commissioner of Charities.

AT R UITHERHR R AR A 800 Be i AR B2 FI0, I3 F 14K iR X5 45
g?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ,@ﬁ%ﬂoﬁﬁﬁ%&%ﬁk%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ@&%%%%%%%
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15.8 The Clinic’s immovable property shall not be sold, mortgaged or lent to other people by
the trustees unless with the approval of the Board of Directors.
AT & PR EBEFRARE, GFRAARES BYSHESMhA, B
G2 H 2 HLE,

15.9 The Board of Directors must inform the Commissioner of Charities or the respective
Sector Administrator of the name of the Trustee and the address of each immovable
property, as well as any subsequent changes.
Fﬁfﬁ’ﬂKiﬂJF‘ﬁﬂﬁﬂtu&Fﬂk%ﬁ)\%?ﬁ{ﬂﬁjﬁﬂlﬂi WNFUE RN 28 B
HHHRI.

16. Prohibitions 2£4

16.1 Gambling of any kind, excluding the promotion or conduct of a private lottery which
has been permitted under the Private Lotteries Act Cap 250, is forbidden on the Clinic’s
premises. The introduction of materials for gambling or drug taking and of bad characters
into the premises is prohibited.

TEA P N ES IEAEA O 2 W18, BR T 45 2 AL E R 25 12 S5 2 50 4% 3T HHL E A9 10
H. SI#EA R, WHMAEYS A S TIY, —#At

16.2 The funds of the Clinic shall not be used to pay the fines of members who have been
convicted in court of law.

AP AT ALV 2 AR RS K

16.3 The Clinic shall not engage in any trade union activity as defined in any written law
relating to trade unions for the time being in force in Singapore.

AR XS H5R L1630,

16.4 The Clinic shall not indulge in any political activity or allow its funds and/or premises to
be used for political purposes.

APIARZHEARIES), S0 ARS 2P EEERR HIE.

16.5 The Clinic shall not hold any lottery, whether confined to its members or not, in the name
of the Clinic or its office bearers, committee or members unless with the prior approval of
the relevant authorities.

A RAART SO BT, BRARR 2] Rt .

16.6 The Clinic shall not raise funds from the public for whatever purposes without the prior
approval in writing of the Assistant Director Operations, Licensing Division, Singapore
Police Force and other relevant authorities.

AP AFEARRIGA LY Mt T E 5 &,
17. Alterations to the Constitution EREBE Y

The Clinic shall not amend its Constitution without the prior approval in writing of the Registrar
of Societies and the Commissioner of Charities. No alteration or addition/deletion to this
Constitution shall be passed except at a general meeting and with the consent of two-thirds
(2/3) of the voting members present at the General Meeting.

AR ABAER LA BTN R 285 S B T B =R, Bl ERL 52 T
R = R E =02 I NBol i,
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18.

19.

20.

21.

Indemnity Ji5£%

Every member of the Board of Directors and any subcommittee shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Clinic against all loses and liabilities incurred in relation to the execution
of such office provided that nothing in this clause shall entitle such member to any indemnity
against liability arising through negligence or fraud.

g{% DN 22 B85 {1 P S A IR B O TR Bk, B S i /N 2 B R AH
L.

Notices 18 &

Any notice to be served on any member of the Clinic shall be in writing and shall be served by
the secretary on any member either personally or by sending it through the post in a prepaid
letter addressed to such member at his, her or its last known address in Singapore and any letter
so sent shall be deemed to have been received within three days of posting.

AR AT 30 2 25 AR A5 4 s A5 ThT A, s R 55 = K BRI R E 8 i 21 08 A,
Settlement of disputes f#HLFiY

Any dispute or difference that may arise as to the meaning or interpretation of these clauses or
the byelaws or as to the powers of the officers of the Clinic or the validity of any election or
proceeding of the Clinic, must be determined by the Board of Directors, whose decision is final
and binding on all members of the Clinic.

Xg}ﬂ:ﬁ%iﬂﬂﬂ MAEMTr B W, MAEHE F o Bk, BT A B F AL 2 2 I
) B

Dissolution f#=L

21.1 The Clinic shall not be dissolved except with the consent of not less than 3/5 of the
members of the Clinic eligible to vote expressed, either in person or by proxy at a General
Meeting convened for the purpose, or by postal vote with not less than 21 days’ notice
stating the terms of the resolution to be proposed.

BRAFBEIADT 2 =1 MR RGEE, AR 2 RS
B TFIRAES,

21.2 On the dissolution of the Clinic any assets remaining after the satisfaction of its liabilities
shall not be paid or distributed amongst the members of the Clinic but shall be given
or transferred to such other charitable institution or institutions registered under the
Charities Act (Cap 37) having objects similar to the Clinic as the Board of Directors may
determine.

UG BIA BRI AR (IROUS ) AEETACS & 01, AAZNR G 25 2% & SRBLAY FF
TEFEFILEL (H375) THEMMZEERIE

21.3 A Certificate of Dissolution shall be given within seven (7) days of the dissolution to the
Registrar of Societies and the Commissioner of Charities.

fEHC AU SO D ATE MR EUE £ (7) RESSHBRE N R AZE 5 B,
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1TETLE Administrative Information

Mt £ Fr Organisation: Singapore Buddhist Free Clinic
il Address: 48 Lor 23 Geylang Singapore 388376
g5 UEN No: S69SS0009J

Rar H 1 Effective Date:12.05.1969

243E %55 Charity Reg No:0100

M H # Reg Date:24.10.1984

Nt IPC Status:Health Endowment Fund
HEIIE5 19 HEF No:0038/G

A% H # Expired Date:30/09/2013

HLE Tel: 6748 7292

f&H Fax: 6748 7239

FLHE Email: admin@sbfc.org.sg

k11t Website: www.sbfc.org.sg

171 Chief Executive Officer: Seck Sian Tiong
M2 M General Manager: Tea Poh Choo (HQ)
FTIEL B 25 P Admin Assistant Manager: Phoon Joo Siang (HQ)
4y Fr ¥ Branch Manager: Ng Gek Eng (TP Br)

Lim Kah Eng (RH Br)

Seck Mun Ho (AMK Br)

Lye Chew Har (JUR Br)

Teo Ah Moi (Rehab Ctr)
&P 1 Uiinternal Auditor: WU CHIAW CHING & CO
HNERFE VT IExternal Auditor: RSM Chio Lim LLP
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R AEH A RERE, BT LELIME AR, BT, 285, TREALIELEILE
B, FERR AR — 54, AL EER T EREAITE, RAREZIFLMLN, EXS
B IR R AR SRR, IZENTHASZS, Rek, —BAFG, 52 fTEREHR,
S TEREIKA N AFTER, M EELTHEHRF,

FEGREA, EEHN AT EEAMARORE, RAHRREBSET, 4 RERER
T RAFEIT R

)

Z T2 fERTE]
(EH—ZE28%)

BT E 4 8.00 am - 12.00 noon

T4: 1.30 pm-4.30 pm
Headquarters B E: 7.00 pm - 9.00 pm
R 26 97 s L4 8.00 am - 12.00 noon
Cancer Treatment Centre T4 1.30 pm - 4.30 pm
AL E T L4 8.00 am - 12.00 noon
Tanjong Pagar Branch T4 1.00 pm - 4.30 pm
AR/ s E4: 8.00 am - 12.00 noon
Redhill Branch B E: 7.00 pm - 9.00 pm
B R FT EZ&: 8.00 am - 12.00 noon
Ang Mo Kio Branch B E: 7.00 pm - 9.00 pm
Bk - BT E 24 8.00 am - 12.00 noon
Jurong Branch B E: 7.00 pm - 9.00 pm
B F s E4F: 8.00 am - 12.00 noon
Rehabilitation Centre T4 1.00 pm - 4.30 pm

Z 198 A NAE K B Closing on Sunday & Public Holiday
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N IS T 43RFEL SR UBN—

4

b
No AR S No AR S
1 B A $ 13,840.00 | 21 WM& $ 913.00
2 b 4 3,2 % $ 8,072.00 | 22 REF $ 770.00
3 b Ak $ 7,230.00 | 23 NE g $ 655.00
4 GRS $ 4,400.00 | 24 & 18 $ 640.00
5 W3 % AR $ 3,871.00 | 25 EX T o $ 487.00
6 WL L) $ 3,810.00 | 26 i+ $ 150.00
7 KERE $ 3,743.00 | 27 HE A $ 115.00
8 W = $ 3,610.00 AR TSy $ 75,887.00
9 SRR $ 3,405.00
10 XET BT $ 3,182.00
11 RS $ 3,070.00 TFa $ 342,252.33
12 kAR $ 2,595.00 BT $ 25,810.00
13 ZiE $ 1,810.00 FARECELF | $ 10,377.00
14 G $ 1,730.00 40,00 5P $ 7,444.00
15 A EF $ 1,602.00 BB 5P $ 13,669.00
16 G $ 1,492.00 ook 23~ BT $ 10,942.00
17 | #epit koA RAE | $ 1,340.00 B E S $ 5,035.00
18 ]k $ 1,235.00 L& H $ 9,593.00
19 ALy & $ 1,120.00 A B it $ 425,122.33
20 ERMBIT $ 1,000.00

BN $501,009.33
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2012 K2 N TEES ESEIT
(1H-12R8)
B LR
2.18%

FEffR UL F &
2.32%

A E AR 92.41%

20126 & FIARNEL S ER AL
R E il ( 1ﬁ - 12H )

o
8%
&
$243,936.88
29%

& B 53 BT —
$163,695.80
20%

REEBES M
$85,202.51
10%
RIRAT S A
$136,042.97
17%
21 5 B
$133,698.80

16%

J
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EHEESEATE A
2012417 £12 7 ;= 4E1000T 3 A L&
Aty e A AR
1 Ng Hwee Phong $ 5,000.00
Kwan Yong Construction Pte Ltd $ 5,000.00
Zu Lin Temple Association $ 5,000.00
I M Kinetic Asia Pte Ltd $ 3,000.00
Wong Tshun Wah $ 2,000.00
Jimmy Textiles $ 2,000.00
Glendon Goh Yik Kiat $ 2,000.00
Lectrix Engineering Pte Ltd $ 2,000.00
Leong Soon San $ 2,000.00
Leong Joo Kee $ 2,000.00
Lee Berlin $ 2,000.00
B % T $ 2,000.00
WiEFEREF $ 2,000.00
Lim Yuen Hwee Alvin $ 1,476.00
Tay Gek Choo $ 1,200.00
Theng You San $ 1,000.00
Keay Chin Hoe $ 1,000.00
Teo Thiam Choon $ 1,000.00
Siak Beow Teng $ 1,000.00
Goh Song Jian $ 1,000.00
Tan Ai Lian $ 1,000.00
See Lay Hoon $ 1,000.00
Kenzone Singapore Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
New Vision Industrial Supplies Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Goh Beng Wang $ 1,000.00
Ching Chiat Kwong $ 1,000.00
Low Chor Hwee $ 1,000.00
Ho Lai Chun $ 1,000.00
Quek Hwee Khim $ 1,000.00
Irodori Japanese Restaurant Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Ho Soon Hai $ 1,000.00
J.T.Lim $ 1,000.00
Poh Siok Fong $ 1,000.00
Richmond -Tech Precision Engineering $ 1,000.00
Ng Sook Cheng $ 1,000.00
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Fa Yew Construction Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
CKT Thomas Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00

FMB Trading And Engineering Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Ngoi Seng Chuan $ 1,000.00

The Late Ms Diana Yip Yuen Yue $ 43,588.69
Chia Seng Leng $ 10,000.00

Teo Huang Cheng $ 5,000.00
Singapore Buddhist Youth Mission $ 5,000.00
Tay Beng Sua $ 5,000.00

Tan Wee Peng Kelvin $ 3,500.00

Value Add System & Technology Pte Ltd $ 3,000.00
Yeo Eng Choon $ 2,000.00

Tan Bee Eng $ 2,000.00

At % F $ 2,000.00

Chen Hsiu Chuan $ 2,000.00

Tak Products & Services Pte Ltd $ 2,000.00
Newlift Holdings Pte Ltd $ 2,000.00
Gan Kian Huat $ 1,648.00
CHEEE $ 1,600.00

Lim Lee Choo $ 1,100.00

Woo Chee Kwong $ 1,000.00

Song Mei Yong $ 1,000.00

Lee Eng Chye Matthew $ 1,000.00
Badaling Holdings Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Gerk Chwee Trading $ 1,000.00
Cheng Jian Fenn $ 1,000.00

DMC Event Management Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Joint & Y Enterprise Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
NCL Housing Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00

Yew Electrical Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Houston Electric Co Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Hong Huang Kiow $ 1,000.00

Win Uoo Shipping & Trading Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Goh Chee Tong $ 1,000.00

Soo Soon Liang $ 1,000.00

Yeo Lik Seng $ 1,000.00

Equinox Engineers Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Ching Chiat Kwong $ 1,000.00

Tan Kee Meng Lang $ 1,000.00

Tan Mang Lie $ 1,000.00
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Lim Mui Siam $ 1,000.00

Ho Boon Keng john $ 1,000.00
Ong Hwee Loon $ 1,000.00

Lim Peng Koon $ 1,000.00
Encord Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00

Tan Pei Ling $ 1,000.00

Chew Su Hwa $ 1,000.00
Kelvin Loh Wei Loong $ 1,000.00
Hiap Ho Offset Printing $ 1,000.00
Leong Char Mui $ 1,000.00
Leong Mee Koon $ 1,000.00
Vimalakirti Buddhist Centre $ 10,000.00
Edmond $ 8,000.00

Ang Tzu Jin $ 5,000.00

Seah Ai Lay $ 5,000.00

Hoe Kee Hardware Pte Ltd $ 5,000.00
Audio House Marketing Pte Ltd $ 5,000.00
Lee Boon Teck $ 5,000.00
Globotron (S) Pte Ltd $ 5,000.00
B FA A R R4k RERE BWAE | S 3,000.00
Giam Chin Chye $ 2,000.00

Neo Poh Hiok $ 2,000.00

Ching Har Leong $ 2,000.00

Sim Hock Pin $ 2,000.00
ELE =T HhFRELIE $ 2,000.00
Lee Pin Lin $ 2,000.00

Ong Chee Khoon $ 1,530.00

Ng Shek Kim $ 1,500.00
Chong Sin Kiong $ 1,500.00

See Lay Pheng $ 1,500.00

Choo Tiong Hum $ 1,500.00

Lim Oh Kick $ 1,500.00

B ie $ 1,500.00

Hwang Shyuesy $ 1,360.00

Ang Lily $ 1,010.00

e HAE FHh $ 1,000.00
Chew Yow Fah $ 1,000.00

Yeo Beng Chye $ 1,000.00

Tat Hong Fishery $ 1,000.00

Kim Hong Fishery $ 1,000.00

920
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Ng Lai Hong $ 1,000.00

Pacific Engineering & Services Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Tan Soo Phay Eric $ 1,000.00

X'IT Services Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Ching Chiat Kwong $ 1,000.00

Liu Mei Hui $ 1,000.00

Hoe Guo Kai $ 1,000.00

Saw Suay Har $ 1,000.00

Neo Ah Lek $ 1,000.00

Nge Aik Moh $ 1,000.00

Tan Tzy Ngar $ 1,000.00

Seck Wan Cheong $ 1,000.00

Leong Loi Ling $ 1,000.00

SF Consulting Pte Ltd $ 5,000.00

Teo Hong Lim $ 5,000.00

Pei Hwa Foundation Limited $ 5,000.00
Anonymous $ 4,800.00

Ng Puay San $ 4,000.00

Lee Ah Choo $ 2,500.00

John Huang Yinghui $ 2,500.00

Chng Hu Song $ 2,400.00

Lim Phang Hong $ 2,000.00

Major Refrigeration Engineering (S) Pte Ltd $ 2,000.00
Choo Hui Yen $ 2,000.00

Pearlyn Tan Pei Ling $ 2,000.00

a4 K $ 2,000.00

WF 5 BEH) $ 1,500.10

LR TERIF $ 1,000.00

LH B}EE $ 1,000.00

The Late Mr Ng Weng Pan $ 1,000.00
Oon Chew Ling $ 1,000.00

Koh Soon Cher $ 1,000.00

Hiap Teck Metal Co (1968) Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Ching Chiat Kwong $ 1,000.00

Tan Lee Hua $ 1,000.00

Kwang Wah Engineering Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Chan Chui Li $ 1,000.00

Li King $ 1,000.00

Tan Mang Lie $ 1,000.00

Peh Siew Cheng $ 1,000.00
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Low Sip Keong $ 1,000.00

Tan Soon Choon $ 1,000.00

Bk Mg A $ 1,000.00

5 Puat Jit Buddhist Temple $ 10,000.00
T FIE KT $ 10,000.00
FAE $ 5,000.00
Uttamayanmuni Buddhist Temple $ 5,000.00
Kok Chaik Ming $ 5,000.00

Teo Teik Loon $ 2,000.00

Leong Soon San $ 2,000.00

Guan Ho Construction Co Pte Ltd $ 2,000.00
Lim Hiong Hwee $ 1,200.00

Wong Tshun Wah $ 1,133.00
J.T.Lim $ 1,000.00

Cheng Jian Fenn $ 1,000.00

Lok Li Li $ 1,000.00

Ching Chiat Kwong $ 1,000.00

Ong Hwee Jing $ 1,000.00
Mangala Vihara Buddhist Temple $ 1,000.00
Albert Soh Ewe Chiam $ 1,000.00
Ravisara Quek $ 1,000.00

B H LR $ 1,000.00

e M H R $ 1,000.00

e FHE $ 1,000.00

Tan Keng Chiang $ 1,000.00

Shi Ming Zheng $ 1,000.00

6 Oh Hoe Yam $ 5,000.00
J.T.Lim $ 2,000.00

The Late Mr Ng Weng Pan $ 2,000.00
Ong Chee Khoon $ 1,530.00

Choo Tiong Hum $ 1,500.00

Lim Oh Kick $ 1,500.00

The Estate Of Phua Jee Eng $ 1,277.20
e HEM $ 1,000.00

Lee Tee Yang $ 1,000.00

Ong Siok Keng $ 1,000.00

Tan Chai Cheng $ 1,000.00

Ching Chiat Kwong $ 1,000.00

Soh Ai Lin Alina $ 1,000.00

Neo Ah Lek $ 1,000.00
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Little Ferry Agencies Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Seet Chee Kong $ 1,000.00

Ong Soh Kwan $ 1,000.00

Tan Swee Hwa $ 1,000.00

Tan Kim Suan $ 1,000.00

] i R $ 1,000.00

Buddha of Medicine Welfare Society $ 43,933.40
Soon Kong Aik $ 6,000.00

Lim Siew Yan $ 5,000.00

Lim Phang Hong $ 5,000.00
Kiantek Hardware Pte Ltd $ 5,000.00
T HEHE $ 5,000.00

e R E A $ 3,000.00

Power Partners Pte Ltd $ 2,000.00
Chia Woon Khien $ 2,000.00

The Late of Mdm Tian Ai Mei $ 2,000.00
Lim Soon Huat $ 1,858.00

Koh Whee Ling $ 1,800.00

Lee Choon Fatt $ 1,000.00

Tan Nguan Chee $ 1,000.00

Kuah Soon Guan $ 1,000.00
Chung Hau Peng $ 1,000.00

Ho Sai Yuen $ 1,000.00

Khoo Swee Giang $ 1,000.00

Tan Hsiao Ching $ 1,000.00

Lim Chon Heng $ 1,000.00

Chia Kar Wing $ 1,000.00

Kim Siang Ginseng Medical Hall Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Lee Mimi $ 1,000.00

Tng Johnny $ 1,000.00

& W IR $ 1,000.00

Tay Chew Har $ 1,000.00

Tay Ah Liong $ 1,000.00

&7 & $ 1,000.00

e A2 E Ao $ 27,755.00

Kuan Im Tng Temple ( Joo Chiat ) $ 10,000.00
Chu Ah Pang $ 5,000.00
G-Force Network Pte Ltd $ 5,000.00
Leong Soon San $ 2,000.00

Ching Chiat Kwong $ 2,000.00
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J.T.Lim $ 2,000.00

Gk $ 1,000.00

Tan Chee Beng $ 1,000.00

Chew Leng Khim $ 1,000.00

Koh Meow Leng $ 1,000.00

Ng Cheng Phiow $ 1,000.00

Yong Lee Wah $ 1,000.00

Ix4 $ 1,000.00

3 HFIHRA $ 1,000.00

i X B $ 1,000.00

T Fi=1E $ 1,000.00
EZNHNZRMHRAE T AT LA $ 1,000.00
Leong Joo Kee $ 1,000.00

9 Mandate Real Estate Pte Ltd $ 5,000.00
Tay Beng Sua $ 5,000.00

Nge Aik Moh $ 2,750.00

Tong Yew Meng $ 2,000.00

Ching Chiat Kwong $ 2,000.00
=8 $ 2,000.00

Ong Chee Khoon $ 1,530.00

WF FH( BEH) $ 1,461.80

Sek Song Meng $ 1,200.00

Ang Koh Seng $ 1,000.00

Ng Eng Juan $ 1,000.00

Tsia Ven Loong $ 1,000.00

J.T.Lim $ 1,000.00

Ng Siew Hwa $ 1,000.00

Foo Say Wah $ 1,000.00
Auspicious Bright $ 1,000.00

Leong Loi Ling $ 1,000.00

Ng Soh Shan $ 1,000.00

Teo Khoon Hoe $ 1,000.00

Seet Tai Chai $ 1,000.00

B, BEIRAT $ 1,000.00

Lam Sit Hin $ 1,000.00

4 K $ 1,000.00

10 Nelson Yeo Chien Sheng #% A7 % $ 30,000.00
Chew Yat Bin $ 20,000.00

Soon Thian Keing (Tuakonsi) Ltd $ 10,000.00
Tan Nam Kee $ 10,000.00
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Keng Wah Hardware Co Pte Ltd $ 10,000.00

Low Sau Foong $ 10,000.00

Lim Boon Kwang $ 5,000.00

Goh Beng Wang $ 5,000.00

Tan Bien Kiat $ 3,500.00

Che Hian Khor Moral Uplifting Society (S) $ 3,000.00
e FRTD $ 3,000.00

Guan Ho Construction Co Pte Ltd $ 2,000.00
Ngiam Ai Tock $ 2,000.00

Lim Siew Kwan $ 2,000.00

Ng Soek Wie $ 2,000.00

Late Tan Eng Teck $ 1,800.00

Choo Tiong Hum $ 1,500.00

Lim Oh Kick $ 1,500.00

Chee See Teck $ 1,500.00

Chua Meng Choo $ 1,500.00

Yong Yiew Meng $ 1,368.00

Lim Ah Yeong $ 1,200.00

Low Hor Yen 2.3 | #4% $ 1,000.00

Teng Ai Choo $ 1,000.00

Saw Suay Har $ 1,000.00

Ng Eng Juan $ 1,000.00

Poh Leng Jie Kwan Inn Buddhist Association $ 1,000.00
Teo Eng Seng $ 1,000.00

Aw Seng $ 1,000.00

Tan Ngak Liang $ 1,000.00

Png Jia Bin $ 1,000.00

Lim Fung In Loving Memory of Fun Mei Keok $ 1,000.00
Teo Yi Yong $ 1,000.00

Lim Bee Geok $ 1,000.00

e HFa $ 1,000.00

B FE $ 1,000.00

Minah Boh Gee $ 1,000.00

Leong Joo Kee $ 1,000.00

B EA ko BARE RN 2% $ 1,000.00

11 Lo Foeng Fong @ Achmad Suriawinata $ 20,000.00
Hong Leong Foundation $ 20,000.00

Teo Soon Lan $ 10,000.00

Toe Teow Heng $ 10,000.00

BB $ 10,000.00
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Kong Meng San Phor Kark See Monastery $ 7,000.00
Sim Piah Hui $ 5,000.00

Oxley Holdings Ltd $ 5,000.00

Poh Tiong Choon Logistics Ltd $ 5,000.00
Kang Wei Pte Ltd $ 5,000.00

Khoo Swee Giang $ 5,000.00

L £ 5 $ 5,000.00

L FRAKE AT $ 3,000.00

Seck Sian Tiong $ 3,000.00

Newlift Holdings Pte Ltd $ 3,000.00
Rattana Antiques Collection Pte Ltd $ 3,000.00
Teo Moh Kwee $ 3,000.00

Wong shih shen $ 3,000.00

4 $ 3,000.00

Koh Chaik Ming $ 2,500.00

rt R $ 2,000.00

Hiap Teck Metal Co (1968 Pte) Ltd $ 2,000.00
Tan Huan Tiow $ 2,000.00

Lim Lay Keng $ 2,000.00

Feeha Cheng Seah Temple & Old Folks Homes $ 2,000.00
Pek Tiong Khuan $ 2,000.00

Poh Bee Li $ 2,000.00

Goh Lee Eng $ 2,000.00

Fong Engineering & Iron Works $ 2,000.00
Toh Swee Heng Hong Hock Pan Mui Yin $ 2,000.00
Choo Wee Fung $ 2,000.00

Teo Meei Fen $ 2,000.00

Neo Poh Hiok $ 2,000.00

Ng Eng Lay $ 2,000.00

T AR $ 2,000.00

Ty $ 2,000.00

Tay Gek Choo $ 1,200.00

Tan Lay Tin $ 1,200.00

Ang Lily $ 1,111.00

Tay Siang Soon $ 1,088.00

Insmart ( Insurance ) Agency Pte Ltd $ 1,015.44
Sam Min Chee $ 1,000.00

Wong Foo Choon & Family $ 1,000.00
Liang Ah Pui $ 1,000.00

Choo Tiong Hum $ 1,000.00
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Lim Oh Kick $ 1,000.00

Goh Kher Wei $ 1,000.00

Gerald Huang Zhe Dong $ 1,000.00

Lian Hup Metal Co Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Soon Kong Aik $ 1,000.00

Tong Ling Yeng $ 1,000.00

Irodori Japanese Restaurant Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Kah Lam Hardware Engr Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Ling Swee Leong $ 1,000.00

Tan Lee Seng Confectionery $ 1,000.00
Shi Ming Zheng $ 1,000.00

Win Uoo Shipping & Trading Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Poh Siok Fong $ 1,000.00

Low York Sheng $ 1,000.00

Ho Hup Electrical Engineering Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Richmond -Tech Precision Engineering $ 1,000.00
Lau Chuen Tai $ 1,000.00
Woodwater Integrated Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Wee Chye Guan $ 1,000.00

Tan Lee Hua $ 1,000.00

Chen Fang Hua $ 1,000.00

Ang Soon Tee $ 1,000.00

Tong Jum Chew Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00

Tay Lee Lee $ 1,000.00

Eng Hak Boon $ 1,000.00

Lim Teck Siong $ 1,000.00

Chu Suat Bee $ 1,000.00

Radio Control Sports Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Ching Chiat Kwong $ 1,000.00

Leong Meoh Fong $ 1,000.00
T.M.Corporation Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
T.M.Transport Contractor Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Koh Loo See $ 1,000.00

Lim Thong Poh $ 1,000.00

Seng Wong Beo Temple $ 1,000.00

Kwa Tiong Guan $ 1,000.00

J.T.Lim $ 1,000.00

Gerk Chwee Trading $ 1,000.00

Loh See Moon $ 1,000.00

Tjoa Mie Mie $ 1,000.00
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Servicebuild Construction & Electrical Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Lim Yuen Hwee Alvin $ 1,000.00

Tan Nguan Chee $ 1,000.00

Han Hui Fong $ 1,000.00

Suit Woo Foong $ 1,000.00

J-Quest Engineering & Trading $ 1,000.00
Seck Wan Cheong $ 1,000.00

Ho Long Shiuan $ 1,000.00

Long Hian Loong $ 1,000.00

Poh Tang Seng $ 1,000.00

Yee Lee Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00

Kim Siang Ginseng Medical Hall Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Ng Chor Wan $ 1,000.00

Lee Choon Chua $ 1,000.00

Late Mdm Wong Lee Mei $ 1,000.00
FHE $ 1,000.00

I A $ 1,000.00

HRF $ 1,000.00

e ER4E $ 1,000.00

ELE =T hFRELAY $ 1,000.00
Kee Kiok Yong & Family $ 1,000.00

Ng Tok Khoong $ 1,000.00

Sek Bao Shi & Sek Bao Tong $ 1,000.00
Chah Chiong Yiew $ 1,000.00

Chan Chiong Mie $ 1,000.00

12 Yip Choo Kin $ 100,000.00
Tan Sing Hwa $ 50,000.00

Tse Tho Aum $ 10,000.00

Singapore Mee Toh Charitable Trust $ 6,000.00
Power Partners Pte Ltd $ 6,000.00

Leong San Si Hock Ean Charitable Trust $ 5,000.00
Mellford Pte Ltd $ 5,000.00

Cathay Photo Store Pte Ltd $ 5,000.00
Electromech Electrical Enterprise Co Pte Ltd $ 5,000.00
Seah Wong Chi $ 5,000.00

Lee Nyan Fatt $ 3,089.00

B E A $ 3,000.00

HHRE $ 3,000.00

Cheong Wai Kun $ 3,000.00

Chua Weng Foo $ 3,000.00
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Tang Seow Heong $ 3,000.00
Association For Traditional Tibetan Medicine(S) $ 2,400.00
Goh Wee Ping $ 2,000.00
Chua Kim Chiu $ 2,000.00
Ang Kok Chun Soh Siew Pin $ 2,000.00
Yeo Suan Toon $ 2,000.00
Lim Siew Kwan $ 2,000.00
Khoo Choon Tin $ 2,000.00

Li King $ 2,000.00

Leong Soon San $ 2,000.00
Tan Hong Beng $ 2,000.00
Lim Kah Cheng Joy $ 2,000.00
Cheng Jian Fenn $ 2,000.00
Goh Kwang Soon Joel $ 2,000.00
Soh Keng Chu $ 2,000.00
Leong Soon Peng $ 2,000.00
Teo Yi Yong $ 2,000.00

Ng Peck Hiang $ 2,000.00
Cheah Sin Jin $ 2,000.00

Bay Yock San $ 1,600.00
Ong Chee Khoon $ 1,530.00
Tjoa Mie Mie $ 1,300.00

Sek Song Meng $ 1,200.00
RN Ve $ 1,024.00
Cheong Fook Onn Medical Co $ 1,000.00
Foo Yuen Fon $ 1,000.00
Choo Tiong Hum $ 1,000.00
Choo Hong Min Ashley $ 1,000.00
Lim Oh Kick $ 1,000.00
Quek Chee Nee $ 1,000.00
Seck Sian Siang $ 1,000.00
Quek Miew Im $ 1,000.00

Ng Quee Kee $ 1,000.00

Lim Meng Kee $ 1,000.00
Lim Sio Bee Sharon $ 1,000.00
Tan Poh Ming $ 1,000.00

Tay Poh Choo $ 1,000.00
Lim Lam Heng $ 1,000.00
Fam Cen Yee $ 1,000.00

Teo Tiong Jin $ 1,000.00
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Wong Ah See $ 1,000.00

Let Hoe Building Materials Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Peh Siew Cheng $ 1,000.00

Tan Chiang Hung $ 1,000.00
Ong Soh Kwan $ 1,000.00

Ray Scientific Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
Goh Koon Jing $ 1,000.00

Ho Tuck Chew $ 1,000.00

Ho Mee Yan $ 1,000.00

Lee Pin Lin $ 1,000.00

Tan Soon Chuan $ 1,000.00
Preference Marketing Pte Ltd $ 1,000.00
J.T.Lim $ 1,000.00

Goh Swee Kang Jayson $ 1,000.00
Low Chor Hwee $ 1,000.00
Wong Liat Yong Michael $ 1,000.00
Metta Supplies & Services $ 1,000.00
Lee Wee Khiang $ 1,000.00
Tang SzeYing $ 1,000.00

Lim Chuan Seng $ 1,000.00
Tham Jian Yang $ 1,000.00

Mr Chua $ 1,000.00

¥ HEE $ 1,000.00

#AT 4 $ 1,000.00

BRET $ 1,000.00
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RS

Main Clinic

48 Lor 23 Geylang
Singapore 388376
Tel: 6748 7292
Fax: 6748 7239

e L e
Ang Mo Kio branch

Blk 348 Ang Mo Kio
Ave 3 #01-2096
Tel: 6453 9466
Fax: 6552 4416

AN B BAEIS B

Singapore Buddhist Free Clinic
48 Lor 23 Geylang Singapore 388376

Tel: 6748-7292 Fax: 67487239
Email: admin@sbfc.org.sg
Website: www.sbfc.org.sg

UEN No: S69SS0009J

ABEES

Tanjong Pagar branch
44 Craig Rd
Singapore 089682
Tel: 6221 6652

Fax :6221 1805

By BT

Jurong branch

Blk 320 Jurong East
St 31 #01-74

Tel: 6563 0063

Fax: 6563 1524

£Tili5r B
Redhill branch

Blk 131 Clarence Lane
#01-20

Tel: 6473 6638

Fax: 6473 1336

REHil

Rehabilitation Centre

BIk 77 Indus Road #01-519
Singapore 160077

Tel: 6272 7711

Fax:6272 9611





